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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE MARKET (“GEM”) OF
THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate companies to which a higher investment risk may be attached than
other companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective investors should be aware of the potential risks of investing in such
companies and should make the decision to invest only after due and careful consideration. The greater risk profile and other
characteristics of GEM mean that it is a market more suited to professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is a risk that securities traded on GEM may be more susceptible to
high market volatility than securities traded on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange and no assurance is given that there will be a
liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

The Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited take no responsibility for the
contents of this report, makes no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaims any liability whatsoever

for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of China Health Group Inc.(formerly known as Venturepharm Laboratories
Limited)(the “Company”) collectively and individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”) for
the purpose of giving information with regard to China Health Group Inc. The Directors, having made all reasonable enquires,
confirm that, to the best of their knowledge and belief: (1) the information contained in this report is accurate and complete in all
material respects and not misleading; (2) there are no other matters the omission of which would make any statement in this report
misleading; and (3) all opinions expressed in this report have been arrived at after due and careful consideration and are founded

on bases and assumptions that are fair and reasonable.
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FRHE
CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

DEAR SHAREHOLDERS:

We are very pleased to inform every one of you that health
industry is developing to the industry with the fastest growing
speed and best opportunity of all. With the help of challenge and
opportunity provided by Chinese clinic revolution, China Health
Group Inc. (the “Group”) is focusing on building itself into a
group corporation providing comprehensive terminal medical
service under international architecture, from hospital clinical
research and product promotion service, hospital management
service, mobile telemedicine service, special expertise therapy
service to rehabilitation and medical tours service.

FOUR MAJOR ENGINES THE COMPANY IS CURRENTLY
CONSTRUCTING:

1. Hospital clinical research and product promotion service: Sunny
venturepharma CRO, flagship of clinical research and product
promotion service provider of the Group, rooting in Chinese
health industry for 15 years, builds extensive relationship and
resource based on its 2000 centers of clinical foundation over
the country and provides research and academic promotion
service through post market clinical studies. Through
constructing clinical research and promotion platforms of
therapy areas like CNS Psychotropic, Bye-Allergy Antianaphylaxis,
CV Cardiovascular and Tangxi Cardiovascular , Sunny venturepharma
CRO provides hospital comprehensive service to creative
clinical research and academic promotion of pharmacy
manufacturers and has signed several cooperation contracts.

2. Hospital management service: the Group has tried to operate
mobile Internet health care and drug delivery service like
‘Chinese best doctor’, ‘My doctor 999°, and currently is
preparing for providing satellite mobile medical service.

3. Special expertise therapy service: We have already begun to
build management and M&A team for it.

4. Projects related to rehabilitation therapy and medical tour
service have been launched.

With Respect to financial operating area, the Group has already
been on the healthy track of positive cash inflow.

In a word, the Group completed transiton from the type of
pharmaceutical technology to new health care system under the
new creative internet architecture. We will grasp the opportunity
of the Chinese health care reform and take advantage of a more
than ten years’ experience to creat physical and spritual welfare
for the patients, staff and shareholders.

By order of the Board
William Xia Guo
Chairman

18 March 2016
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Year ended 31 December

BETHA=1T—H1L4E

2015 2014
TR AR e LR
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
ARBETIL ARBETIC
Results B3
Revenue a5 20,497 5,956
Profit/(Loss)for the year FEN (B A (3,487) 44,085
Assets and Liabilities e M A
Total Assets KA 18,951 15,940
Total Liabilities =Ly 58,619 53,462
Deficit of shareholders’ funds TR 2= (39,668) (37,656)

1. The Group recorded consolidated revenue of RMB20,497,000 for the
year ended 31 December 2015 (the “Year”), which represents
approximately 244% increase from RMB5,956,000 in year 2014.

2. The Group recorded loss before taxation of RMB3,376,000 for the Year, as
compared with profit before taxation of RMB44,117,000 in year 2014.

3. The Group recorded operating profit of RMB172,000 for the Year,
without considering the fair value change of convertible bonds of
RMB2,731,000 and financial expense of RMB817,000, as compared
with operating loss of RMB8,319,000 in year 2014.

4. The Group obtained operating cash inflow of RMB3,390,000 for the

Year, as compared with operating cash inflow of RMB 11,000 in year
2014.

04 CHINA HEALTH GROUP INC.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

RESULTS

The Group recorded Loss before taxation of RMB3,376,000 for the
Year, as compared with profit before taxation of RMB44,117,000
in the corresponding period last year. Loss before taxation in the
Year was primarily attributed to the fair value loss of RMB2,731,000
on derivative financial liabilities arising from the assessment on the
valuation of the unlisted convertible notes issued on 24 December
2014. While net profit in the corresponding period last year was
primarily attributed to the exceptional income of RMB52,897,000
from the restructuring of the 2007 Convertible Notes. After
deducting exceptional income of RMBS52,897,000 from the
restructuring of the 2007 Convertible Notes, the Group still recorded
loss of RMBS,780,000 from operations in the corresponding period

last year .

The Group recorded operating profit of RMB172,000 for the Year,
without considering the fair value change of convertible bonds of
RMB2,731,000 and financial expense of RMB817,000, as compared
with operating loss of RMB8,319,000 in year 2014. The Group
obtained net cash generated from operation activities of
RMB3,390,000 for the Year, as compared with net cash generated
from operation activities of RMB 11,000 in year 2014.

The Group recorded revenue of RMB20,497,000 for the Year,
which represents approximately 244% increase from RMB5,956,000
in the corresponding period last year. The 2015 consolidated
turnover included approximately RMB 12,275,000 derived from
the contracted clinical research services (VPS), amounted to
59.89% of the total revenue; approximately RMBS5,420,000 from
the post market service and academic promotion services (PMS),
amounted to 26.44% of the total revenue and approximately
RMB2,802,000 from other medical services, amounted to 13.67%
of the total revenue. The increase in revenue was mainly due to (a)
the terminal of clinical medicine of research-type extension based
on the clinical research i.e .the post market service and academic
promotion service, which is one of the four growth-driving
platforms was widely recognized by the markets. (b) The Group
recorded an increase revenue in clinical research services (VPS) of
approximately RMB6,696,000 for the Year. Total consolidated gross
profit was RMB15,517,000 in the Year as compared with
RMBA4,541,000 in 2014, yet gross profit margin remained the same
of 76% for two Years.

Total consolidated general and administrative expenses were
approximately RMB14,055,000 representing an increase of
approximately RMB1,318,000 compared with approximately
RMB12,737,000 of the corresponding period last year. The
increase was primarily due to the employees’ wages rising.
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CONVERTIBLE NOTES

On 24 December 2014, the Company issued new unlisted
convertible notes with a fair value of US$1,000,000 and a maturity
date of 24 December 2016. The notes are unsecured, bear no interest
and have a term of 2 years. The noteholder has right to convert the
notes into ordinary shares at any time up to maturity at a conversion
price of HK$0.1.

The loss caused by fair value change of convertible bond is about
RMB2,731,000 (2014: RMB307,000), and is recorded in the loss on
revaluation of financial derivative liability in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income for the

Year.

The fair values of convertible notes in debt and derivative financial
instrument part are RMBS5,779,000 and RMB4,447,000 respectively
at 31 December 2015 (2014:RMB4,844,000 and RMB1,623,000).
This convertible notes would be expired in 2016, so be listed as
current liability for the Year (2014:Non-current liability).

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND GEARING
RATIO

As at 31 December 2015, the Group’s current liabilities exceeded
its current assets and its total liabilities exceeded its total assets by
approximately RMB44,471,000 (2014: net current liabilities of
approximately RMB37,065,000) and approximately RMB 39,668,000
(2014: net liabilities of approximately RMB37,522,000) .

Meanwhile, considering the working capital and long term fund
demand for future development, The Group will consider to raise
further funds through bank loans, issuance of new shares,
convertible notes, and issuance of new debts, etc.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE
During the Year, the Group's transactions were substantially

denominated in Renminbi ("RMB"). As such,
currency risk facing the Group is limited. Currently, the Group

the foreign
has not adopted any financial instrument for hedging pursuing.
BUSINESS REVIEW

Aiming at long-term development, the Group keeps pursuing its
business stratergy of transforming from a leading technology

transfer supplier to a health care service group under the internet

architecture.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Group has managed to establish a new drug technology
development and value-added services business model for whole
value chains such as preclinical studies, Clinical Research
Service (VPS), regulatory affair (RA) service and post market
service (PMS),and devoted to build four growth-driving
platforms,such as the medical management platform under the
internet architecture, the terminal of clinical medicine of
research-type extension based on the clinical research,
rehabilitation therapy industry platforms and special features of

hospital industry platforms.

The Group continued its investment in the enhancement of
marketing capability and the expansion of market network, and
introduced a new drug technology development and value-added
services business model for whole value chains in the domestic
market under the brand of Venturepharm ,while striving to
establish and expand overseas markets under the brand of
VPS-CRO. During the Year, the Group not only focused on
business expansion, but also paid more attention to the
enhancement of brand value and the improvement of
professional capability, aiming at becoming a comprehensive
and reliable technology and service provider with the most

prestigious brand and leading technologies.

POST MARKETING RESEARCH AND
PROMOTION SERVICES (PMS)

ACADEMIC

The Year is a milestone for the Group's strategic transition . The
Group make best use of its VPSCRO's 15 years of efforts and
strong relationship with leaders and experts through 400 clinical
base for providing the post marketing research and academic
promotion service(PMS).The sevice was widely recognized by
the markets and brought revenue of RMB5,420,000 for the first
time in the Year.

CLINICAL RESEARCH SERVICE (VPS)

Taken clinical study as the prime focus, the Group has
established the most integrated service in the country, which
provides a series of services ranging from phase I clinical and
bioequivalence studies, phase II-11I clinical studies, and phase [V
post-marketing clinical study, to data management and medical
statistics, and medical administration related service.
Meanwhile, the Group makes a great efforts to improve the
professional capability involving the above mentioned services
and has preliminarily established 13 professional research
institutions  including  Venturepharm-CBI  phase [ clinical
research center, VPS-mart phase IV clinical research and
SAS-Venturepharm  data

management and medical statistics center, VP-Porsche RA

academic  promotion  center,

service center, OHH-VP Pacific-Asia clinical research institution
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for oncology, TangXi-VP Pacific-Asia clinical research
institution for Diabetes, CNSVP Psychoneurologic and pain
management Pacific-Asia clinical research institution, CV-VP
Cardiovascular Pacific-Asia clinical research center, AIDS and
hepatitis Pacific-Asia clinical research institution, DermNova
Pacific-Asia clinical research institution for dermatosis and
gynecologic disease and TCM-VP clinical research center for

natural drug and traditional Chinese medicine, etc.

In the meantime, the Group has built a nation-wide network with
bases in Beijing, Shanghai and Guangzhou and offices in over 30
provincial capital cities for clinical monitoring and academic
promotion, covering over 80% hospitals which have been
authorized to conduct clinical research. The Group has the
capacity of operating more than 60 phase I and BE projects each
year and conducting 50 phase II-III clinical projects
simultaneously. Meanwhile, the Group is able to carry out 4
phase 1V clinical trials with large sample size (2,000 subjects) at
the same period.

PROSPECTS

The Group will continuously push forward the strategic
transition from a leading technology transference supplier to a
health care service group under the internet architecture.The
Group will also continuously strengthen the terminal of clinical
medicine of research-type extension based on the clinical
research , at the same time push forward the construction of
medical management platform under the internet architecture ,
rehabilitation therapy industry platforms, and special features of
hospital industry platform with steady steps.

The Board will also review and assess of potential project or
investment according to reliable principles, in order to improve
the group business performance and return to shareholders.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT
During the Year, there was no significant investment.
HUMAN RESOUCES

The Group’s remuneration policy is basically determined by the
performance of individual employees. In addition to salaries and
bonuses, The Group also provided various other benefits to its
employees. Employee benefits included medical and pension
contributions and share options schemes.

The Group monitored closely the remuneration and fringe
benefits of the employees and rewarded employees in accordance
with the Group’s business performance. In addition, training and
development opportunities for the employees were also provided
by the Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

DIVIDEND

The directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2015(2014: Nil).

REVIEW OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Company has established an audit committee (the “Audit
Committee””) with written terms of reference in compliance with
the GEM Listing Rules 5.28 to 5.33. The primary duties of the
audit committee are (a) to review the Group’s annual reports,
interim reports and quarterly reports (b) to discuss and review
with the audit of the Company on the scope and findings of the
audit; and (c) to supervise the financial reporting process, risk
management and internal control systems of the Group. and

provide advice and comments to the Board.

The Audit Committee has three members comprising the three
Independent Non-executive Directors, Mr. Shou Yuan Wu, Mr.
Mark Gavin Lotter (appointed on 17 February 2015) and Binhui
NI (appointed on 31 March 2015). The chariman of the Audit
Committee is Mr. Shou Yuan WU who possesses extensive

experience in finance and accounting.

The Audit Committee of the Board has reviewed and approved
the consolidated financial statements for the Year, including the
accounting principles and new and revised accounting standards
adopted by the Company, and discussed matters relating to

auditing, internal controls and financial reporting.

2015 EHRE
ANNUAL REPORT

BE-F-—RE+-A=+—HILEE
For the year ended 31 December 2015

;735\

HHEAEHRNEE —F - LE A= H IR E R
AR (R4 ) .

FiB R ER

KAm B ERZ RS, B RAISEN b i BIE s
Wl HRRER I . 3 Z B G2 RN (a) FHRIALEM
ZAERE ARG (b) BACA IR S
R i RS IR M (o) BB AR I 2 s i R
A LN PR AT, M 1 SRR R R A

FREEGE R =AW T AT HE B RFICHAE . Mark
Gavin Lotter 5642 (F20154F2 H 17 HIEZAT) R e 1+
(T20154F3 H31 HIERAT) Mk RETTIELFHEER
TN, HEEASE IS s R .

2 B E CERAMA ARSI A 2 AR S R,
BAE AN E] TR I BT R AMERTHER, W AT AT B A
Ah PIRBELSE M el L.

TEEREEEFERAFT09




2015 ERE
ANNUAL REPORT

BEZHE-—AE+-"A=1+—HIEE
For the year ended 31 December 2015

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. William Xia GUO, aged 51 , is the Chairman, executive
Director of the Group. Mr. Guo is responsible for strategic
planning and development, overall management of the Group.
Mr. Guo obtained with a Master degree in science from
University of Toronto in March 1997. Mr. Guo has also
completed various approved courses for the degree of Master of
Business Administration in Heriot-Watt University and the Judge
institute EMBA in University of Cambridge. Before establishing
the Group in December 1998, Mr. Guo had worked for two
pharmaceutical companies in Canada, namely Ortho-McNeil Inc.
under Johnson & Johnson and Novopharm Limited under Teva
Pharmaceutical Industries Ltd as research scientist and process
development manager, respectively.

Mr. Guo used to be the Chairman of the directors and CEO of
Common Wealth Technology Inc listed on NASDAQ and vice
president of All-China Federation of Industry and Commerce
Medical Pharmaceutical Chamber, He also got National model
worker title and The National May 1 Labour Medal, and was
prized as' 2005 Excellent creative enterpriser’ in 2005 by
BCCC(got the scholarship for EMBA study in University of
Cambridge).

Dr. Maria Xue Mei SONG, aged 48, is an executive Director. Dr.
Song is responsible for Clinical Research. Dr. Song graduated
from China Concord Medical University with a Doctorate degree
in clinical medicine in July 1995. She is also a Registered
Pharmacist in the PRC. Prior to joining the Group in February
2000, Ms. Song had served as general manager of Beijing
Tiancifu Biopharmaceutical Co. Ltd.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Dr. Nathan Xin ZHANG, aged 52, has been appointed as a
non-executive Director since 2 February 2005. Dr. Zhang is the
former chief executive officer of Chipscreen Biosciences Ltd., a
leading Chinese biotech company specialized in innovated
cancer, diabetes, and osteoporosis drug discovery. Dr. Zhang had
worked with KPMG LLP and Credit Suisse First Boston. Dr.
Zhang holds an M.D. from Tianjin Medical University, Ph. D
from University of Pennsylvania, and an MBA from the
University of Chicago, USA.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. Shou Yuan Wu, aged 43, has been appointed as an
independent non-executive Director and the chairman of the audit
committee since 26 December 2011. Dr. Wu is the director of
Wisdom Management Consulting CO., Limited, and is the
director of ASIA CERAMICS HOLDINGS PLC which is a
listing company in British AIM, etc. Dr. Wu graduated from
Ministry of Finance with a doctor’s degree, from Capital
University Of Economic And Business with a master's degree,
and is a senior member of British ACCA, he is one of the leading
accountant elite of Ministry of Finance (Certified Public
Accounting Series), he has over twenty years experience of

accounting and finance.

Dr. Bing Hui NI, aged 57, has been appointed as the independent
non-executive Director and the chairman of nomination
committee, as well as one of the members of audit committee and
remuneration committee since 31 March 2015. Dr Bing Hui NI
acts as Vice President in Sanofi, and head of external Science &
Partnering-Asia Pacific. Dr. Ni holds a PhD in molecular
pharmacology from University of Toronto under fellowship and
post-doctoral fellowship in Clinical Pharmacology from National
Institute of Health. Dr. Ni has over 40 publications in journals
including Science, PNAS and served as adjunct professors in
several universities in USA and Singapore. Dr. Ni has over 20
years of healthcare industry experience in the US and Asia/China.
He served in senior scientific and managerial positions for several
top Fortune 500 companies, including Eli Lilly (being Action
Group Chair, US), S'BIO (being Vice President/ head of Biology,
Singapore,) and Covance China (being General Manager, China)

Mr. Mark Gavin Lotter, aged 53 has been appointed as the
independent non-executive Director and the chairman of
remuneration committee, as well as one of the members of audit
committee and nomination committee since 17 February 2015.
Mr. Mark Gavin Lotter holds a Bachelor of Science in Pharmacy,
and Master in Business Leadership of University of South Africa
degrees and has over twenty five years of work experience largely
in the pharmaceutical industry. He started his career in South
Africa and where he has held senior management positions which
included Chief Executive Officer of Astra Pharmaceuticals
(South Africa) and Chief Executive Officer of Aspen Healthcare
(South Africa). He has more than 10 years’experience in China
where he held a number of senior positions including Vice
President of Commercial Operations of AstraZeneca China,
Officer of Nova Med
Pharmaceuticals and Chief Executive Officer SciClone - China

Operations. The Board is convinced that the joining of Mr. Lotter

Founder and Chief Executive

will be a great asset to the Board and the Company.

For the year ended 31 December 2015
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The Directors of the Company present their annual report and the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2015.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The
principal activities of the Company’s subsidiaries are set out in
notes 13 to the financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by business
segments is set out in note 4 to the financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2015 are
set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on page 33 of the annual report.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of final dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2015.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group and the Company during the year are set out in note 11 to

the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in note 23

to the financial statements.

RESERVE

Movements in the reserves of the Group during the year are set

out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on pages 98.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE LISTED
SHARES OF THE COMPANY

The Company and its subsidiaries did not purchase, sell or redeem
any of the Company’s listed shares during the Year. The
Company and its subsidiaries also did not redeem, purchase or

cancel any of their redeemable securities.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date
of this report are:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:

3 years from his re-appointment on 30
December 2014

William Xia GUO

3 years from her re-appointment on 30
December 2014

Maria Xuemei
SONG

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:

Nathan Xin
ZHANG

3 years from his re-appointment on 30
December 2014

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:

3 years from his re-appointment on 30

Shou Yuan WU
December 2014
Mark Gavin Lotter 3 years from his appointment on 17 February 2015
Bin Hui NI 3 years from his appointment on 31 March 2015

CHANGE OF COMPANY NAME:

The company has changed its name from “Venturepharm
Laboratories Limited” to *“ China Health Group Inc.” on 12
January 2015.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTEREST IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2015, the interests and short positions of the
Company’s Directors and chief executives in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”), which are required
(a) to notify the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which
they are taken or deemed to have taken under such provision of
the SFO); or (b) pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered
in the register referred to therein; or (c) pursuant to Rules 5.46 to
5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules were as follows:

Long positions in shares and underlying shares of the Company

EFEHT
DIRECTORS’ REPORT

ERNFEATBARRBRG . HERRG RRS 2

AR —REF A= —H, AARZ ES KT
NBEARN S R HAHE A (E5 AR5 e (f
B RN ) BBXVER) 2B BB s
, A () SRR RS 5 OB ) 28 XV B 26 7 R B 840 BB M8y
RANF R EBF G S ARAT ( THCR ) ) 2%
BRI (LG S AR 58 2 S R B 1403 S5 A5 SO 1 B
WRHEA Z R SOIRE) ; Bi(b) IR F5 SN & 16156
352f6, JEBI NG IR B Fo M 2 RS MOk e B (o) IRIE
AZEN BRI 5 46 25 6 7R Fid 2 RERS MBI

A BB R AR 3 2 7

Number ofshares in

Number ofshares in which whichinterested under Total Approximate
interested(other thanunder physically settled equity number percentage of
Name Type of interest Capacity equityderivatives) derivatives(Note 4) of shares interest(%)
" Wz 6y TRl B U TR E A SRR TRty aams HERARAY
CBAATA THERIN) WE T AFE A 57 H (%)
ZJBA i H (Note 4)
William Xia GUO Personal Beneficial owner 74,775,941 11,298,000 86,073,941 9.40
William Xia Guo A HEHPEAN
William Xia GUO Corporate Interest of a controlled 250,428,873 77,500,000 327,928,873 35.83
William Xia Guo G| B (\Zorp\orati(gl LNote\: \1)
AR (T
William Xia GUO Corporate Interest of a controlled 149,432,583 - 149,432,583 16.33
William Xia Guo N B (;orporation \(Not§‘2)
SRR (HTE2)
William Xia GUO Corporate Interest of a controlled 91,915,181 - 91,915,181 10.04
William Xia Guo Al _ Corporation (Note 3)
AR PR AR (P T:3)
Maria Xuemei SONG Personal Beneficial owner 636,500 1,924,000 2,560,500 0.28
KL 1 joent
Nathan Xin ZHANG Personal Beggﬁ_ciil owner - 324,400 324,400 0.04
SRR A PR
Sgog Yuan Wu Personal Begggcig_l owner - 100,000 100,000 0.01
ES o {EUN i
Mark Gavin Lotter Personal Beneficial owner - 100,000 100,000 0.01
Mark Gavin Lotter e
Bin Hgi{ NI Personal Ben;ﬁ/ciﬂl owner - 100,000 100,000 0.01
i {EUN j-wnts ZSUN
Note 1: Winsland Agents Limited is 100% directly held by Mr. William Xia GUO. BEL: 258625 Winsland  Agents Limited (11 William Xia Guoft/t EI#EHF47
100%/BAE.
Note 2: The controlled corporation, Venturepharm Holdings Inc., is 47.63 % directly KtE2: 245515 Venturepharm Holdings Inc.[{iWilliam Xia Guoft/E ET#4517
held by Mr. William Xia GUO and 49.00 % held by Mr. William Xia GUO 47.63%/HE, DIR T William Xia GuoZt/fi7% i Winsland Agents Limited
through Winsland Agents Limited, his wholly and beneficially owned company (R TG E LTI 7, HIGuost - B s ) 77449.00%
incorporated in British Virgin Islands. JRAE
Note 3:  The controlled corporation, Bright Excel Assets Limited, is 100 % beneficially KIE3:  AZE5 L Bright Excel Assets Limited =25 #E 7 Venturepharm Holdings
owned by Venturepharm Holdings Inc. TInc. Fad 6
Note 4:  Various interests of the Directors pursuant to physically settled equity MfiFd: R E AR ARG T T HLIE 2 ZIE R s s A R R 14

derivatives are through share options granted.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS FEBH

IR MR T B X VS S 33614 2 e T2 2 %
WERME R, REF-HE T H=1+—H, KAFPERM
BN IR RS K, B AR A R E B TIN5 %
kDL ERERS

The register of substantial shareholders required to be kept under
section 336 of Part XV of the SFO shows that as at 31 December
2015, the Company had been notified of the following substantial
shareholders’ interests and short positions, being 5% or more of
the Company’s issued share capital.

Approximate

percentage of
Name Capacity Number of shares iAnterest

. y Ay 2z INH
P 5t Wb MR EERIE 4 I
Winsland Agents Limited (Note 1) Beneficial owner 327,928, 873 35.83
Venturepharm Holdings Inc. (Note 2) Beneficial owner 149, 432, 583 16.33
Venturepharm Holdings Inc. (Note 3) Interest of controlled corporation 91,915, 181 10.04
Bright Excel Assets Limited (Note 3) Beneficial owner 91,915, 181 10.04
William Xia GUO (Notes 1, 2, 3,4) Beneficial owner and interest of 655, 350, 578 71.60
controlled corporations

Winsland Agents Limited ([f71:1) HwmEA N 327, 928, 873 35.83
Venturepharm Holdings Inc. (Fff 14:2) HisHER A 149, 432, 583 16.33
Venturepharm Holdings Inc. ( Fff 742 3) 7 ) R 25 91, 915, 181 10.04
Bright Excel Assets Limited ( fff 73 ) EERE] RN 91, 915, 181 10.04
William Xia Guo (Fff 71, 2, 3}4) TS W N M A sl ik A2 655,350,578 71.60
Long positions in shares and underlying shares of the Company A w5 Oy B BRI 2 i A

Note 1: Winsland Agents Limited is 100% directly held by Mr. William Xia GUO. The
shares includes 77,500,000 shares granted under the 2014 Convertible Notes.

Note 2: Venturepharm Holdings Inc. is 47.63% directly held by Mr. William Xia GUO
and 49% held by Mr. William Xia GUO through Winsland Agents Limited, his
wholly and beneficially owned company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands.

Note 3:  The controlled corporation, Bright Excel Assets Limited, is 100 % beneficially
owned by Venturepharm Holdings Inc.

Note 4:  Apart from shares held through Venturepharm Holdings Inc., and Winsland
Agents Limited ,the interest of 88,798,000 shares which include 77,500,000
shares (through Winsland Agents Limited) and 11,298,000 shares underlying
the options granted to him under the 2014 Convertible Notes and the Share
Option Scheme respectively are beneficially owned by Mr. William Xia GUO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2015, there was no
other person who was recorded in the register of the Company as
having interest or short position in the shares or underlying shares
of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or which were
required, pursuant to section 336 of Part XV of the SFO, to be
entered in the register referred to therein.

Subsequent to the financial year ended 31 December 2015,
William Xia GUO has purchased from the secondary market a
total of 2,300,000 shares in January 2016.

ML Winsland Agents Limited HiWilliam Xia GuoG4E BT 100% K
CHTIRIE2014 AT R IR (77 K 1977,500,000/8 »

Mf7#2: Venturepharm Holdings Inc. A1 William Xia GuoFE4: EI1%1¥H47.63%

JRAR, LA i William Xia GuosE 4% Winsland Agent Limited ( FfE
LELRERFIEN S, BB 2R Tt ) FH49%H -

Hf7E3: 245740 Bright Excel Assets Limited 255X Hi Venturepharm Holdings

Inc. L ai H A

Bif7t4:  BRiEN Venturepharm Holdings Inc.flIWinsland Agents Limited 172 /R 7
S, William Xia GuosE4ESK a1 118,798,000/ IR (i, L Ea75#
HE20144F 7] 5 JR A7 KM JR AL 0 R 8 T2 166 2 I IR #2453 7
77,500,000/ %17 (i Winsland 52 7) K 11,298,000/ /K (7o

Br ESCRr R &AL, R R A = H, %A
AuEFLMEL SR, WAL AT A A LA R B s
B JB 7 PP R AR o MU B 1 5 XV I 5 2 K B8 30 B2
(AR 2> W i 2 RE SR B, SCSRARARE o M A B R 1) 55
XV BRI 33606 5 A Z A FTIA S e 2 B B

IR E . William Xia Guo ££2016%F1 H £ R IG5
2,300,000/ A7 o
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DIRECTORS’
SIGNIFICANCE

INTERESTS 1IN CONTRACTS OF

Save as disclosed in note 28(d)(i) to the consolidated financial
statements, no other contracts of significance to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a
Director of the Company had a material interest, whether directly
or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during
the year.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

As disclosed in note 27, the company adopted a share option
scheme. It awards the relevant eligible participants for their

contribution in the group's operation.
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EHTEREH MBS

BRIHE28(Q) ) TSI HISE S0 8, TAAFERS H B UL TR ]
MR AR A w B HAT AT B 88 2 128 Hh T 8005 BAR 2 ]
R N RN R ALIEE S SO A I NG R

SRR

7y [ S 7 8 A R I L K Y i 2 B A L
NHEE, AN RVENS TR ( TIRORERT ) ) o
6 o S PR Rl A 25 SR I I B TR I 27 B

Name or Granted At 31 Exercise Date of Exercise
category At 1 Januay on 30 Exercised | Expired in December price per grant of period of
of parti(tipanj 2015 June 2015 in the Year | the Year 2015 share(HK$) | share options share options
SRALH | o= F | RoF R | R | AR e e | BT | R MR
SR | AH | AASEREN | A | PR | petn | gebieks) | BRI fir iy
360,000 - 360,000 - 0.52 02-03-05 02-03-06%01-03-15
I 324,000 324,000 0.36 10-08-06 10-08-0724209-08-16
William
XiaGuo | 966 000 966,000 0.625 10-05-07 | 10-05-08409-05-17
858,000 858,000 0.435 07-04-09 | 07-04-10%06-04-19
9,150,000 9,150,000 0.45 30-06-15 30-06-16429-09-25
230,400 230,400 0.52 02-03-05 02-03-06201-03-15
432,000 432,000 0.36 10-08-06 10-08-07%09-08-16
Other directors
HAph iR 560,000 560,000 0.625 10-05-07 10-05-082209-05-17
916,800 916,800 0.435 07-04-09 | 07-04-10%06-04-19
900,000 900,000 0.45 30-06-15 30-06-16%29-09-25
116,000 116,000 0.52 02-03-05 02-03-062201-03-15
72,000 72,000 0.45 14-12-05 14-12-06%13-12-15
Employees and 262,800 90,000 172,800 0.36 10-08-06 10-08-07%09-08-16
consultants S 100 108,000 | 424,100 0.625 10-05-07 D
i BB , , X . -05- 10-05-08 :£09-05-17
3,618,000 1,062,000 | 2,556,000 0.435 07-04-09 | 07-04-10%06-04-19
10,620,000 10,620,000 0.45 30-06-15 30-06-16%29-09-25
Total
At 9,248,100 | 20,670,000 2,038,400 | 27,879,700
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DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESS

As at 31 December 2015, none of the Directors or the management
shareholders of the Company and their respective associates (as
defined in the GEM Listing Rules) had any interest in a business
that competes or may compete with the business of the Group.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S SHARES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the Company's listed shares during the year
ended 31 December 2015.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Corporate governance report of the Company is set out on pages

to 19 of 29 the annual report.
SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of its Directors as at the date
of this report, the Company has maintained the prescribed public
float under the GEM Listing Rules.

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each Independent Non-executive
Directors an annual confirmation for independence pursuant to Rule
5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules. The Independent Non-executive
Directors have confirmed that they are independent.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

During the year, the five largest customers of the Group accounted
for approximately 50.1% of the Group’s sales. The largest customer
accounted for approximately 24.0% of the sales of the Group.

During the year, the five largest suppliers of the Group accounted for
approximately 77.6% of the Group’s cost of service. The largest
suppliers accounted for approximately 71.7% of the cost of the
service of the Group.

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholders which, to
the knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s
issued share capital had any interest in the five largest customers of
the Group.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015

EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICY

During the Year, staff cost, including Directors’ remuneration is
approximately RMB8,676,000 (2014: approximately RMB4,770,000).
The Group remunerates its employees based on their performance
and the prevailing market price. Other employee benefits include
mandatory provident fund, insurance and medical coverage,
training programs and share option scheme.

The Company adopted the Share Option Schemes where share
options to subscribe for shares of the Company may be granted to
the eligible participants of the Group. 20,670,000 share options
have been granted to the eligible participants under the Scheme
during the Year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association or the laws of the Cayman Islands, which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis
to existing shareholders.

CHANGE OF AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by KLLC
Kennic Lui & Co. Ltd.("KLC”).

Following the resignation of UHY Vocation HK CPA Limited as
auditor of the Company on 10 December 2015, KLC was
appointed as the auditor of the Company to fill the vacancy and to
hold office until the conclusion of the next annual general meeting
of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, there were no other change in auditor of

the Company during the preceding three years.

On behalf of the Board

Chairman
William Xia GUO

Beijing, the PRC, 18 March 2016
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GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company’s corporate governance practices are based on the
principles and the code provisions as set out in the Code on
Corporate Governance Practices (the “Code”) as set out in
Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing Rules. The principles adopted
by the Company emphasis a quality board, transparency and
accountability to shareholders. In the opinion of the Board, the
Company has complied with the Code for the year ended 31
December 2015, with the exception for the following deviations:
Under code provision A.2.1, the responsibilities between
chairman and chief executive officer should be divided. However
currently, the Company does not have Chief Executive Officer.
The day-to-day management of the Company's business is
handled by the executive directors, who take the responsibility to
run the Group's business and to implement the Group's strategy so
as to achieve the overall commercial objectives of the Company.

Under code provision A.4.1, non-executive Directors should be
appointed for specific term. There is no specific term of
appointment of the non-executive Directors; however, they are
subject to retirement by rotation in accordance with the Articles
and the Code. Accordingly, the Company considers that sufficient
measures have been taken to deal with the requirement in respect
of the appointment terms of non-executive Directors as required
under the code provision.

Under the code provision A.6.7 of the CG Code, independent
non-executive directors and other non-executive directors should
attend general meetings and develop a balanced understanding of
the views of shareholders. In addition, Under the code provision
E.1.2 of the CG Code, the chairman of the board should attend the
annual general meeting and he should also invite the chairmen of
the audit, remuneration, nomination and any other committees (as
appropriate) to attend. The annual general meeting of the
Company (the “AGM?”) held on 30 June 2015, Mr. William Xia
Guo (chairman of the Board ),did not attend the said AGM to
answer questions of the shareholders of the Company due to other
prior business engagements. However, Mr. William Xia Guo has
appointed the other attended Director Ms. Maria Xuemei Song as
their representative at the said meetings to answer questions of the
shareholders of the Company.

RULE 5.05(1) OF THE GEM LISTING RULES
Rule 5.05(1) of the GEM Listing Rules the board of directors of a

listed issuer must include at least three independent non-executive
Directors.
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Upon the resignation of Mr. Jing An Zhang as the independent
non-executive Director of the Company on 24 November 2014,
the number of independent non-executive Directors fell below the
minimum requirement.

And the resignation of Mr. Paul CONTOMICHALOS as the
independent non-executive Director of the Company on 21
January 2015, the number of independent non-executive
Directors fell below the minimum requirement.

After the appointment of Mr. Mark Gavin Lotter on 17 February
2015 and Dr Binhui NI on 31 March 2015 as the independent
fulfilled the
requirement on the number of independent non-executive

non-executive Director, the Company has
directors of the Company as required under Rule 5.05(1) of the

GEM Listing Rules.

RULE 5.28 OF THE GEM LISTING RULES

Rule 5.28 of the GEM Listing Rules every listed issuer must
establish an audit committee comprising non-executive directors
only. The audit committee must comprise a minimum of 3
members.

Upon the resignation of Mr. Jing An Zhang as the member of the
audit committee of the Company on 24 November 2014, the
number of members of the audit committee fell below the
minimum requirement.

And the resignation of Mr. Paul CONTOMICHALOS as the
member of the audit committee of the Company on 21 January
2015, the number of members of the audit committee fell below
the minimum requirement.

After the appointment of Mr. Mark Gavin Lotter on 17 February
2015 and Dr. Binhui NI on 30 March 2015 as the member of the
audit committee, the Company has fulfilled the requirement on
the number of members of the audit committee as required under
Rule 5.28 of the GEM Listing Rules.

TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company had adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by Directors on terms no less exacting than the
required standard of dealings set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the
GEM Listing Rules. The Company also had made specific
enquiry of all Directors and and the Directors confirmed that they
have complied with the required standard of dealings and its code
of conduct regarding securities transactions by Directors during
the Year.
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(3) BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The overall governance structure of the Company is set out below:

Audit Committee
three members

AT
= A

Shou Yuan WU (Chairman)
SLETT (W)

Mark Gavin Lotter
Mark Gavin Lotter

Bin Hui NI
i

Note:

The Board members during the Year and up to the date of this

annual report are :

Executive Directors:

William Xia GUO (re-appointed on 30 December 2014)
Maria Xuemei SONG (re-appointed on 30 December 2014)

Non-executive Director:

Nathan Xin ZHANG (re-appointed on 30 December 2014)

Independent Non-executive Director:

Shou Yuan Wu (re-appoined on 30 December 2014)
Mark Gavin Lotter (appointed on 17 February 2015)

Bin Hui NI (appointed on 31 March 2015)

Paul CONTOMICHALOS (resigned on 21 January 2015)

(3)#ier

The Board
HHE
Chairman appmmed by the Board
FH :Li:" = i’&ﬂf r'h

Two Executive Directors
2L AT H
One Non—-Executive Director

1Az AT T o

Three lndependent Non-Executive Directors

30 SRR TR

Nomination Committee

four members
RETEW
PUALRE B

Bin Hui NI (Chairman)
FRMIE (R

William Xia GUO
William Xia Guo

Shou Yuan WU
SETT

Mark Gavin Lotter
Mark Gavin Lotter

BAHEE -

PATHES:

FHITES:
R (R
B FHITES:

RFIT (A —

Mark Gavin Lotter (74

William Xia Guo (FA—%
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Remuneration Committee
four members
FMZEAS

utiaia=|

Mark Gavin Lotter (Chairman)
Mark Gavin Lotter (ZEJ&5)

William Xia GUO
William Xia Guo

Shou Yuan WU
RATE
Bin Hui NI
{5LMZ I
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Biographical details of each Director is set out in the section
headed “Profile of directors and senior management’ on pages 10
to 11 of this annual report.

There are no relationships (including financial, business, family
or other material or relevant relationships) among members of the
Board.

The Board of Directors ("Board") of the Company is collectively
responsible for the oversight of the management of the business
and affairs of the Group with the objective of enhancing
shareholders value.

The Board, led by the Chairman, is responsible for the approval
and monitoring of the Group's overall strategies and policies;
approval of annual budgets and business plans; evaluating the
performance of the Group; and oversight of management. One of
the important roles of the Chairman is to provide leadership to the
Board to ensure that the Board acts in the best interests of the
Group. All Directors have been consulted about any matters
proposed for inclusion in the agenda. With the support of
Executive Directors and the Company Secretary, the Chairman
seeks to ensure that all Directors are properly briefed on issues
arising at Board meetings and receives adequate and reliable
information in a timely manner.

Regular Board meetings of the year are scheduled in advance to
give all Directors an opportunity to attend. Four regular Board
meetings
scheduled for 2015. The Directors can attend meetings in persons

at approximately quarterly intervals have been

or through other means of electronic communication in
accordance with the Company's Articles of Association. Board
papers are circulated not less than seven days before the Board
meetings to enable the Directors to make informed decisions on
matters to be raised at the Board meetings. The Company
Secretary and the Qualified Accountant shall attend all regular
Board meetings to advise on corporate governance, statutory
compliance, accounting and financial matters when necessary.
Directors shall have full access to information of the Group and
are able to obtain independent professional advice whenever
deemed necessary by the Directors. The Company Secretary
assists the Chairman in establishing the meeting agenda, and each
Director may request inclusion of items in the agenda. Minutes of
the board meetings are kept by the Company Secretary and are
open for inspection by Directors.
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During the twelve months ended 31 December 2015, the Board
held six meetings. The attendance records of the aforementioned
six Board meetings are set out below:
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Attendance of individual directors at
board meetings during the year
FENFEREF SR gRHEE

Attendance no. Attendance rate

Executive Director HATH R

William Xia GUO William Xia Guo 5/6 83.33%
Maria Xuemei SONG REHF 6/6 100%
Non-executive Directors €[S

Nathan Xin ZHANG 5K 4/6 66.67%
Independent Non-executive Directors bRV | R e

Shou Yuan WU SFETT

Mark Gavin Lotter (Appointed on 17 Mark Gavin Lotter 6/6 100%
February 2015) (h20154F2 H 17 HIEAT) 5/6 83.33%
Bin Hui NI (appointed on 31 March 2015) MR (722015473 H 31 HEEAT) 5/6 83.33%
INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE g~ Jesi/F 85 > B e

DIRECTORS

In accordance with the guidelines for assessing independence set
out in Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules,the Company has
received, from each of the independent non-executive Directors,
an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 5.09
of the GEM Listing Rules. The Company, based on such
confirmations, considers all of the independent non-executive

Directors are independent.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Chairman of the Board is responsible for the leadership and
effective running of the Board, and ensures that all keys and
appropriate issues are discussed by the Board in a timely and
constructive manner. Currently, the Company does not have Chief
Executive Officer.  The day-to-day management of the
Company's business is handled by the executive directors, who
take the responsibility to run the Group's business and to
implement the Group's strategy so as to achieve the overall

commercial objectives of the Company.
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DIRECTORS’ TRAINING

According to the code provision A.6.5 of the Code, all directors
should participate in continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure that their
contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.

All Directors have participated in continuous professional
development during the Year. The Company has also
continuously updated Directors on the latest developments
regarding the GEM Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory
requirements, to ensure compliance and enhance their awareness
of good corporate governance practices.

During the Year, the Directors participated in the continuous
professional developments in relation to regulatory update, the
duties and responsibility of the Directors and the business of the
Group in the following manners:
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RPN A6 51, 2R TAB A LR
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Attended Seminar

or Briefing/ Read Material
R Er el g/ BEETe

Directors

Executive Directors WITHE

William Xia Guo William Xia Guo \/
Maria Xuemei Song KE M VA
Non-executive Director EHITES

Nathan Xin Zhang HRAK \/
Independent non-executive directors B IEUTES

Shou Yuan Wu R \/
Mark Gavin Lotter Mark Gavin Lotter \/
Binhui NI (A e \
BOARD COMMITTEES EXZEE

The Board has established three committees, namely audit
committee, nomination committee and remuneration committee,
to oversee particular aspects of the Company’s affairs.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an audit committee (the “Audit
Committee”) with written terms of reference in compliance with
the GEM Listing Rules. The primary duties of the audit
committee are (a) to review the Group’s annual reports, interim
reports and quarterly reports (b) to discuss and review with the
audit of the Company on the scope and findings of the audit; and
(c) to supervise the financial reporting process ,risk management
and internal control systems of the Group and provide advice and
comments to the Board.
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The audit committee has three members comprising the three
Independent Non-executive Directors, Mr. Shou Yuan Wu, Mr.
Mark Gavin Lotter (appointed on 17 February 2015) and Binhui
NI (appointed on 31 March 2015). The chariman of the audit
committee is Mr. Shou Yuan WU who possesses extensive
experience in finance and accounting.

During the Year, the audit committee held five meetings. The
attendance records of the aforementioned audit committee
meetings are set out below:
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FERTEGH =AM AE R T R EIT A Mark
Gavin Lotter 254 (JA20154F2 7 17 AMEZAT) FSIME i1
(R20154E3 31 AMERAT) Mk. RFTHRAELHEEES
FEF, LS EIg L esE.

TREIBAERLN, FZETERITsREH®, AW
BHFHESZE B EHR R T

Attendance of individual directors at
board meetings during the year

FENEZE AE R A TR

Attendance no. Attendance rate

Members 4=

Shou Yuan WU RETT 5/5 100%
Mark Gavin Lotter Mark Gavin Lotter 4/5 80%
(appointed on 17 February 2015) (2 2015 4F 2 H 17 HIRZHT)

Binhui NI (appointed on 31 March 2015) {SAMHE (A 2015 4F 3 B 31 H3RZAT) 4/5 80%

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established a nomination committee (the
“NC”) with written terms of reference in compliance with the
GEM Listing Rules. The primary duties of the NC are to review
the structure, size and composition (including but not limited to
the gender, skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board and
make recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company’s corporate strategy. The NC is chaired
by an independent non-executive Director. The NC comprises a
majority of independent non-executive Directors. During the
year, the members of the NC are as follows:

Executive Director
William Xia Guo

Independent non-executive directors

Shou Yuan Wu

Mark Gavin Lotter (appointed on 17 February 2015)
Binhui NI (appointed on 31 March 2015)

During the Year , the NC held two meetings The attendance
records of the aforementioned nomination committee meetings
are set out below:

REZRE
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Jie SEP, IRATEEZREWT:

BfTH=

William Xia Guo

W AERATESE

RFTC

Mark Gavin Lotter (2201542 H 17 HEZAT)
fRMIE (2201543 7 31 HIEZAT)

TREIRBAERERY, AT BT T 20k, HOHa#d
GO BN 2 AR N FRg e B B B
. MATZAEGHMENFRAZ AT TR ST

Attendance no Attendance rate

Members RE HE H =
Shou Yuan WU B2=Za0 22 100%
William Xia Guo William Xia Guo 212 100%
Mark Gavin Lotter (appointed on 17 February 2015)  Mark Gavin Lotter (74201542 7 17 AJZAT) 212 100%
Binhui NI (appointed on 31 March 2015) AR (7201553 7 31 HEZAT) 2/2 100%
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company has adopted a board diversity policy (the “Policy’)
setting out the approach to achieve and maintain diversity on the
Board in order to enhance the effectiveness of the Board. and
delegated certain duties under the Policy to the NC. The NC and
the Board had also reviewed on 14 May 2015 the structure of the
Board and is of the opinion the Board consisted of members with
different gender, age, cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills and knowledge, which
met the requirements under the terms of the Board Diversity
Policy.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established a remuneration committee (the
“RC”) according to the relevant provisions of the GEM Listing
Rules with written terms of reference. Its primary duties are (a) to
make recommendation to the Board on the Company’s policy and
structure for all remuneration of Directors and senior
management; (b) to review and approve the management’s
remuneration proposals with reference to the Board’s corporate
goals and objectives; and (c) to determine the remuneration
executive Directors and senior

packages on individual

management.

The RC is formed by an executive director and three independent
non-executive directors During the Year, the members of the RC
are as follows:

Executive Director

William Xia Guo

Independent non-executive directors

Shou Yuan Wu
Mark Gavin Lotter (appointed on 17 February 2015)
Binhui NI (appointed on 31 March 2015)

During the Year, three meetings were held by the RC to discuss
and review the remuneration policies of the Company, to review
and make recommendations with respect to the remuneration of
Board members for approval by the Board and to made
recommendations with respect to the remuneration of the newly
appointed Directors during the year for approval by the Board.
The RC has adopted the operation model where it performs an
advisory role to the Board, with the Board retaining the final
authority to approve the remuneration packages of individual
executive Directors and senior management.
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Attendance no. Attendance rate

Members ﬁjzﬁ ‘I:H ﬁ ‘/k%& I':H Fﬂ%—‘ 3:5
Shou Yuan WU REL 2/3 66.67%
William Xia Guo William Xia Guo 3/3 100%
Mark Gavin Lotter (appointed on 17 February 2015) Mark Gavin Lotter (f&20154 2 A 17 HERE)  3/3 100%
Binhui NI (appointed on 31 March 2015) A (it 2015 4F 3 H 31 HEZRT) 3/3 100%
DIRECTORS’ ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF THEIR  #HAMGHTBHEZ EE

RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the preparation 5 FHIZRIL & B im i ARG [ 2 WAk, W AEGH A BB 1

of the financial statements of the Group and ensure that the
financial statements are prepared in accordance with statutory
requirements and applicable accounting standards. The Directors
also ensure the timely publication of the financial statements of
the Group.

The Directors confirm that, to the best of their knowledge,information
and belief, having made all reasonable enquiries, they are not
aware of any matters uncertainly relating to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern.

INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board is responsible for ensuring that the Group has a sound
and effective internal control system. The Group is committed to
the identification, monitoring and management of risks associated
with its business activities and has implemented a practical and
effective control system which includes a defined management
structure with limits of authority, a sound cash management
system and periodic review of the Group’s operation and
performance by the Audit Committee and the Board. The internal
control system is reviewed on an ongoing basis by the Board to
ensure it is effective. The Board is satisfied that, based on
information furnished to it and on its own observations, the
present internal controls of the Group are satisfactory. The Board
has conducted review of the effectiveness of the system of internal
control and is of the view that the system of internal control
adopted for the Year is sound and effective. The Group does not
have an internal audit function and the Board is of the view that
there is currently no need for the Group to have this function.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The responsibility statement of external auditor of the Company,
KLC about their reporting responsibilities on the financial
statements of the Group is set out in the Independent Auditor’s
Report on pages 30 to 32 . During the year, auditor’s remuneration
for audit services was RMB370,000. Save as disclosed above,
there was no other non-audit services assignment undertaken by
the external auditor during the Year.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary of the Company is responsible for
distributing detailed documents to the Directors prior to the Board
meetings to ensure that the Directors are able to make informed
decisions regarding the matters discussed in the meetings. And all
Directors have access to the advice and services of the Company
Secretary with a view to ensuring that the Board procedures, and
all applicable rules and regulations, are followed.

During the Year, the Company Secretary is Mr. Leung Kwok Fai
Ben Rich and a written confirmation had been received by the
Company from Mr. Leung Kwok Fai Ben Rich to confirm he took
not less than 15 hours of relevant professional training during the
Year.

SHAREHOLDERS’RIGHTS

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity for
communications between the shareholders and the Board. An
annual general meeting of the Company shall be held in each year
and at the place as may be determined by the Board.

SHAREHOLDERS TO CONVENE AN EXTRAORDINARY
GENERAL MEETING

Shareholders may convene A Special general meeting (“SGM”)
of the Company according to the provisions as set out in the
Articles and the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands. A SGM
can be convened by a written request signed by shareholders of
the Company, stating the objects of the meeting and deposited at
the Company’s head office at Unit B, 19/F,Times Media Centre,
133 Wanchai Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

PROCEDURES FOR PUTTING FORWARD PROPOSALS
BY SHAREHOLDERS AT SHAREHOLDERS’ MEETING

The procedures for shareholders to put forward proposals at an
AGM or SGM include a written notice of those proposals being
submitted by shareholders, addressed to the Company Secretary
at the Company’s head office at Unit B, 19/F, Times Media
Centre, 133 Wanchai Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong. The detailed
procedures vary according to whether the proposal constitutes an
ordinary resolution or a special resolution, or whether the
proposal relates to the election of a person other than a Director of
the Company as a director. The procedures for shareholders to
convene and put forward proposals at an AGM or SGM
(including election of a person other than a Director of the
Company as a director) are available on the Company’s website
or on request to the Company Secretary.
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Shareholders may at any time send their enquires and concerns to
the Board in writing through the Company Secretary at the
Company’s head office at Unit B, 19/F, Times Media Centre, 133
Wanchai Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong or send email to
ir@venturepharm.net.

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at the AGM
or SGM.

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND COMMUNICATION
WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company uses a number of formal communications channels
to account to shareholders and investors for the performance of
the Company. These include (i) the publication of quarterly,
interim and annual reports; (ii) the AGM or SGM providing a
forum for shareholders of the Company to raise comments and
exchanging views with the Board; (iii) key information of the
Group available on the website of the Company; (iv) the
Company’s share registrars in Hong Kong serving the
shareholders in respect of all share registration matters; and (v)
corporate information and the Bye-laws of the Company are made

available on the Company’s website.

A Shareholder’s Communication Policy was adopted by the
Board aiming at providing the shareholders and potential
investors with ready and timely access to balanced and
understandable information of the Company.

The Company aims to provide its shareholders and investors with
high standards of disclosure and financial transparency. The
Board is committed to providing clear, detailed, timely manner
and on a regular basis information of the Group to shareholders
through the publication of quarterly, interim and annual reports
and/or dispatching circular, notices, and other announcements.

The Company keeps on promoting investor relations and
enhancing communication with the existing shareholders and
potential investors. It welcomes suggestions from investors,
stakeholders and the public.

Enquiries to the Board or the Company may be sent by post to the
Company’s head office at Unit B, 19/F, Times Media Centre, 133
Wanchai Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.
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EHMERNARERARLA
KLC Kennic Lui & Co. Ltd.

Certified Public Accountants (Practising)

To the shareholders of China Health Group Inc.

(formerly known as Venturepharm Laboratories Limited)

B T &
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Hh BB ER A IR AT (R E 2R B IRAR) SBORK

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

BB HI TR )

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China
Health Group Inc. (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together,
the “Group”) set out on pages 33 to 97, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2015, the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. This report is made
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other

person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial

statements are free from material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgments, including the assessment of the risks of material

statements.

misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error.
auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a

In making those risk assessments, the

true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2015 and of the Group’s financial performance and
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared
in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

EMPHASIS OF MATTER IN RELATION TO THE GOING
CONCERN BASIS FOR PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Without qualifying our opinion, we draw attention to note 2(b)(ii)
to the consolidated financial statements which indicates that the
Group incurred a net loss of approximately RMB3,487,000 for
the year ended 31 December 2015 and, as of that date, the Group’s
current liabilities exceeded its current assets and total assets by
approximately RMB44,471,000 and RMB39,668,000, respectively.
These conditions, along with other matters as set forth in note 2
(b)(ii)) to the consolidated financial statements, indicate the
existence of a material uncertainty that may cast significant doubt
about the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
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OTHER MATTER

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2014 was audited by another auditor who
expressed an unmodified opinion on those statements on 31
March 2015.

KLC Kennic Lui & Co. Ltd.

Certified Public Accountants (Practising)
Tang Wai Yau

Practising Certificate No.: P05737

Hong Kong,

18 March, 2016
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OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME For the year ended 31 December 2015

Year ended 31 December 2015
BWE _F—HET_H=+—H1L%E

2015 2014
e S i e S 11 K
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt AREETIT PN T
R
s 4 20,497 5,956
Cost of services
R A (4,980) (1,415)
G fit
S 15,517 4,541
Other i
P 5 1,876 1,517
Administrati
ﬁﬁ(ngr}};ﬂra ive expenses (14.055) (12.737)
Impairment losses on work-in-progress
Er‘éu“u‘«;aﬂﬁ prog 14 (3,166) (1,640)
Profit/(loss) from operations
%@%‘Zﬁéﬂ(ﬁ%fﬁ) ’ 172 (8,319)
Finance costs
Rl A 6(a) 817) (170)
Loss on revaluation of derivative financial liabilities
T2 S T (2,731) (307)
Gain on disposal of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, net
e AR i - 16
Gain on waiver of convertible notes and interest
AT R MR R 20 J 52,897
(Loss)/profit before taxation
B BT O )/ 6 (3,376) 44117
Income tax expense
R 7 (i (32)
Total comprehensive (loss)/income for the year
AT A T OB A1)/ 1 4 (3,487) 44,085
Attributable to:
AN,
Equity shareholders of the Compan
A TR - 3.353) 4l
Non-controlling interests
SlEalibgi e ¢ (134) 32)
Total comprehensive (loss)/income for the year
AT A T OB A1) ) 4 (3,487) 44,085
(Loss)/earnings per share
(s TR R
Basic (0.37 cents) 11.57cents
HAR 10(@) (0.37 1llly 11571l
Diluted 10(b) (0.37 cents) 9.62cents
i (0.37 1l 9.621lli

The notes on pages 38 to 97 form part of these financial statements.
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ARERIBAR IR

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Non-current assets A B i
Property, plant and equipment SUE N NG ]
New drug technologies HTEERART

Current assets T P

Work-in-progress AF PE
Trade and bills receivable JREUAT R R R FEEVAC AR B I 552
Prepayments and other receivables TAN IR A R

Cash and cash equivalents T M IEE

Current liabilities
Payables and accrued charges

WA

AR e 22 ]

Receipts in advance THISARSK
Convertible notes BIE: )¢ er3
Derivative financial liabilities igasear =N
Bank borrowings SATREK
Income taxes payable JEAS BB
Net current liabilities T ISR
Total assets less current liabilities WV PR B A
Non-current liabilities iR Bh A i
Convertible notes AR5
Derivative financial liabilities FTA A
Net liabilities HAfE

Notes
B

11
12

14
15
16
17(a)

18
19
20
20
21
22

20
20

As at 31 December
At H=1+—H

2015 2014

—“E R DU
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTIT ARWETIT
4,803 6,010
4,803 6,010
2,673 5,502
3,368 50
1,332 500
6,775 3,878
14,148 9,930
22,550 19,284
24,215 25,687
5,779 -
4,447 -
1,500 2,000

128 24
58,619 46,995
(44.471) (37,065)
(39,668) (31,055)
- 4,844

- 1,623

- 6,467

(39,668) (37,522)

The notes on pages 38 to 97 form part of these financial statements.
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Capital and reserves B St
Share capital HR
Reserves fittts

Deficiency in assets attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company

Non-controlling interests EIEplig fa
Deficit of shareholders’funds e AR

Notes

B

23
24

Ay ) IR A7 NS o R AR A0

As at 31 December

AT -H=1—H

2015 2014
TR R
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTIT ARETT
81,699 81,699
(121,367) (119,355)
(39,668) (37,656)

- 134

(39,668) (37,522)

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 18 March 2016.

I Aoy S RWANEE L o 3k RUSIE R T

William Xia GUO
William Xia Guo
Director

B

The notes on pages 38 to 97 form part of these financial statements.
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Dr. Maria Xue Mei SONG

KEME L
Director
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FRE s B R
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Attributable to owners of the Company

AR A
Statutory
Share- enterprise Non-
Shgre Based payment Special Capital ~ Statutory  expansion  Accumulated controlling
capital TEXVe reserve Teserve reserve fund losses Total interests Total
Tk MR fEEE KRR RELR peex  mmBR an ERmER
ARk BELA

RMB'000 ~ RMB000  RMB'000 ~ RMB'000 RMB'000 ~ RMB'000  RMB'0O0  RMB'0O0  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETE  ARBTL ARWTT ARETE ARWTT ARETE ARETT ARNTT ARETT  ARETE

\R=R
Balance at | January 2014 - 38,681 4285 6039 2,254 3801 6986 (186,857) (124.791) 166 (124625)
Change in equity for 2014 ZZ—[UfFZ ERHE . - E - - - “117 “117 (32) 4,085

Profit / (loss) for the year A4

Total comprehensive . )
profit/ (1oss) Al - - - - - - 44,117 44,117 (32) 44,085

Rights issue BT 43,018 - - - - - - 43,018 - 4,018

Balance at 31 December 2014 —F—Jy4E+—

AZF=H 1699 4285 6,039 2254 3821 6986 (142,740) (37,636) 134 (37,522)
and at 1 January 2015 R-E—fE—~H—H

Change in equity for 2015

“E- RN

Loss for the year AEER o . (134) o
Total comprehensive loss AT 659 0 1 o
Equity settled share— DA 3 B ff 3k 1,341 1,341 1,341

based transactions BB

Balance at 31 December 2015 “F—T4+ " H=+—H 8169 5626 6039 B e oo (6 e - e

The notes on pages 38 to 97 form part of these financial statements.
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Cash flows from Operating activities
Cash generated from operations
Interest paid

Income taxes paid

Net cash generated from operating activities

Cash flows from Investing activities
Interest received

Dividend income

Proceeds from disposal of financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss

Net cash generated from investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds from bank borrowings

Repayment of bank borrowings

Proceeds from rights issue

Proceeds from issuance of new convertible notes
Repayment of old convertible notes

Net cash (used in)/generated from financing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

RETRBSHEH
RSB T B
EAFLR

S G

BB TEHESTE

WEE AT
EAE
BB
A B EE B
Z A EZ N

e

st AL

BB TS ESTE

RIS B (B )/ B
SR BT OH

%LT LU,

BT R TS B 6
BAT AR P e Bl
AR s R B

RS B T S S

B MBI SEH A EE
B& KB & SEH B FO0RE

Bl MBI ESHEH B ARG

Year ended 31 December 2015
BE—F—HE+_HA=1T—HILFEF

2015
S
RMB’000
NEHET

Notes

B e

17(b) 3,529

(132)
(7

3,390

1,500
(2,000)

(500)

2,897
3,878

6,775

2014
S %t
RMB’000
NERMET T

212
(148)
(53)

11

13
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. GENERAL 1. FAES

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 21
May 2002 as an exempted company with limited liability
under the Companies Law (2002 Revision) of the Cayman
Islands. The address of its registered office is Scotia Centre,
4th Floor, PO Box 2804, George Town, Grand Cayman,
Cayman Islands and its principal place of business is Building
AII Venturepharma Center, No. 11 of West Third Ring North
Road, Haidian District, Beijing, the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC”), 100089. The Company has had its shares
listed on The Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited since 10 July 2003.

The Company is an investment holding company. The
principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 13 to
the consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Renminbi (“RMB”), rounded to the nearest thousand. RMB is
the functional currency of the Company and is also the
functional currency for the Company’s subsidiaries established
in the PRC.

. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which is a collective
term that includes all applicable individual Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”), accounting principles generally accepted in
Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial statements
also comply with the applicable disclosures required by the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Growth
Enterprise Market of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited. A summary of the significant accounting
policies adopted by the Group is set out below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised
HKFRSs that are first effective or available for early
adoption for the current accounting period of the Group
and the Company. Note 2(c) provides information on any
changes in accounting policies resulting from initial
application of these developments to the extent that they
are relevant to the Group for the current and prior

accounting periods reflected in these financial statements.
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(b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements

(i) Measurement basis, judgements, estimates and
assumptions

The consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2015 comprise the Company and
its subsidiaries (together referred to as the “Group”).

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis except
that derivative financial liabilities are stated at their
fair values as explained in note 2(e) to the accounting
policies.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires management to make
judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of policies and reported amounts of
assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and various other factors that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances,
the results of which form the basis of making the
judgments about carrying values of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current and
future periods.

Judgments made by management in the application of
HKFRSs that have significant effects on the financial
statements and major sources of estimation
uncertainty are discussed in note 3.

(ii) Going Concern

The Group incurred a net loss of approximately
RMB3,487,000 for the year ended 31 December 2015
(2014: profit of RMB44,085,000) and, as of that date,
the Groups current liabilities exceeded its current assets
and total assets by approximately RMB44,471,000
(2014: RMB37,065,000) and RMB39,668,000 (2014:
RMB?31,055,000), respectively. These conditions, along
with other matters set forth in the consolidated financial
statements, indicate the existence of a material
uncertainty that may cast significant doubt about the
Groups ability to continue as a going concern.
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The directors believe that the Group will be able to meet
its financial obligations in full as and when they fall due
for the foreseeable future since the directors of the
Company believe that the Group will generate positive
cash flows in the next twelve months by receiving cash
from new contracts and enforcing stringent cost
measures. Accordingly, the financial statements have
been prepared on a going concern basis. The financial
statements do not include any adjustments relating to the
carrying amounts and reclassification of assets and
liabilities that might be necessary should the Group be

unable to continue as a going concern.

(¢) Changes in accounting policies

The HKICPA has issued the following amendments to
HKFRSs that are first effective for the current accounting

period of the Group:

e Amendments to HKAS 19, Employee benefits: Defined
benefit plans: Employee contributions
e Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle

e Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle

The impacts of the adoption of the amended HKFRSs are
discussed below.
Amendments to HKAS 19, Employee benefits: Defined

benefit plans: Employee contributions

The amendments introduce relief to reduce the complexity
of accounting for certain contributions from employees or
third parties under defined benefit plans. When the
contributions are eligible for the practical expedient
provided by the amendments, a company is allowed to
recognise the contributions as a reduction of the service
cost in the period in which the related service is rendered,
instead of including them in calculating the defined benefit
obligation. The amendments do not have an impact on
these financial statements as the Group do not have defined

benefit plans.
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(d)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle and
2011-2013 Cycle

These two cycles of annual improvements contain
amendments to nine standards with consequential
amendments to other standards. Among them, HKAS 24,
on related party disclosures has been amended to expand
the definition of a “related party” to include a
management entity that provides key management
personnel services to the reporting entity, and to require
the disclosure of the amounts incurred for obtaining such
personnel services provided by the management entity.
These amendments do not have an impact on the Group’s
related party disclosures as the Group does not obtain key
management personnel services from any management

entities.

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The
Group control an entity when it is exposed, or has rights,
to variable returns from its involvement with the entity
and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power over the entity. When assessing whether the
Group has the power, only substantive rights (held by the

Group and other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that
control commences until the date that control ceases.
Intra-group balances, transactions and cash flows and any
unrealised profits arising from intra-group transactions
are eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated
financial statements. Unrealised losses resulting from
intra-group transactions are eliminated in the same way as
unrealised gains but only to the extent that there is no

evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a
subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to the
Company, and in respect of which the Group has not
agreed any additional terms with the holders of those
interests which would result in the Group as a whole
having a contractual obligation in respect of those
interests that meets the definition of a financial liability.
For each business combination, the Group can elect to
measure any non-controlling interests either at fair value

or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of

(d)
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Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position within
equity, separately from equity attributable to the equity
holders of the Company. Non-controlling interests in the
results of the Group are presented on the face of the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income as an allocation of the total profit
or loss and total comprehensive income for the year
between non-controlling interests and the equity

shareholders of the Company.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that do
not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions, whereby adjustments are made to the
amounts of controlling and non-controlling interests
within consolidated equity to reflect the change in relative
interests, but no adjustments are made to goodwill and no

gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in that
subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being recognised
in profit or loss. Any interest retained in that former
subsidiary at the date when control is lost is recognised at
fair value and this amount is regarded as the fair value on
initial recognition of a financial asset or, when
appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of an
investment in an associate or joint venture.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an
investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less
impairment losses (see note 2(i)), unless the investment is
classified as held for sales (or included in a disposal

group that is classified as held for sale).

(e) Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are recognised initially
at fair value. At the end of each reporting period the fair
value is remeasured. The gain or loss on remeasurement
to fair value is recognised immediately in profit or loss,
except where the derivatives qualify for cash flow hedge
accounting or hedge the net investment in a foreign
operation, in which case recognition of any resultant gain

or loss depends on the nature of the item being hedged.
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(f) Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see
note 2(i)).

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment, less their estimated
residual value, if any, using the straight-line method over
their estimated useful lives as follows:
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Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of the item is allocated
on a reasonable basis between the parts and each part is

depreciated separately.

Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if

any, are reviewed annually.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of
an item of property, plant and equipment are determined
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the item and are recognised in

profit or loss on the date of retirement or disposal.

(g) Intangible assets

Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated

amortisation and impairment losses (see note 2(i)).

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful lives
is charged to profit or loss on the straight-line basis over
the assets’ estimated useful lives. The following
intangible assets with finite useful lives are amortised
from the date they are available for use and their

estimated useful lives are as follows:
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Both the period and method of amortisation are reviewed

annually.
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(h)Lease assets
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(CViik=e=7:3

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines

that the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific

i A G B LA SH L R A U PR PO e S
ol RYIFOH, MR R RE E ek 2 HE
JFEZRER, ARZEHE (R msc e RIS S ALK
) RAEEAEIE . TR ARG

asset or assets for an agreed period of time in return for a
payment or a series of payments. Such a determination is
made based on an evaluation of the substance of the
arrangement and is deemed to be so regardless of whether

the arrangement takes the legal form of a lease.

(i) Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets that are held by the Group under leases which
transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership are classified as being held
under finance leases. Leases which do not transfer
substantially all the risk and rewards of ownership to

the Group are classified as operating leases.

(ii) Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held under
operating leases, payments made under the leases are
charged to profit or loss in equal instalments over the
accounting period covered by the lease terms, except
where an alternative basis is more representative of the

pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased assets.

(i) Impairment of assets

(i) Impairment of trade and other receivables

For trade and other receivables and other financial
assets carried at amortised cost, impairment loss is
measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective
interest rate computed at initial recognition of these
assets), where the effect of discounting is material.
This assessment is made collectively where financial
assets carried at amortised cost share similar risk
characteristics, such as similar past due status, and
have not been individually assessed as impaired.
Future cash flows for financial assets which are
assessed for impairment collectively are based on
historical loss experience for assets with credit risk

characteristics similar to the collective group.
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(i)

If in a subsequent period the amount of an impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be linked objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment loss was
recognised, the impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss. A reversal of an impairment loss shall
not result in the asset’s carrying amount exceeding
that which would have been determined had no

impairment loss been recognised in prior years.

Impairment losses are written off against the
corresponding assets directly, except for impairment
losses recognised in respect of trade debtors included
within trade and other receivables, whose recovery is
considered doubtful but not remote. In this case, the
impairment losses for doubtful debts are recorded
When the Group is
satisfied that recovery is remote,

using an allowance account.
the amount
considered irrecoverable is written off against trade
debtors directly and any amounts held in the
allowance account relating to that debt are reversed.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
charged to the allowance account are reversed
against the allowance account. Other changes in the
allowance account and subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off directly are

recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period to
identify indications that the following assets may be
impaired or an

impairment loss previously

recognised no longer exists or may have decreased:

— property, plant and equipment;
—new drug technologies;

— work-in-progress; and

— investments in subsidiaries.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable

amount is estimated.

(i)
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Calculation of recoverable amounts

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of
its fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset. Where an asset does not generate cash
inflows largely independent of those from other
assets, the recoverable amount is determined for the
smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss if the
carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-generating
unit to which it belongs, exceeds its recoverable
amount. Impairment losses recognised in respect of
cash-generating units are allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the
cash-generating unit (or group of units) and then, to
reduce the carrying amount of the other assets in the
unit (or group of units) on a pro rata basis, except that
the carrying value of an asset will not be reduced
below its individual fair value less costs of disposal
(if measurable), or value in use (if determinable).

Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an
impairment loss is reversed if there has been a
favourable change in the estimates used to determine
the recoverable amount. Impairment losses in respect
of goodwill are not reversed.

Reversal of an impairment loss is limited to an
asset’s carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised
in prior years. Reversals of impairment losses are
credited to profit or loss in the year in which the
reversals are recognised.

(iii) Interim financial reporting and impairment recognition

Under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Growth Enterprise Market of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, the Group is
required to prepare an interim financial report in
compliance with HKAS 34, Interim Financial
Reporting, in respect of the first six months of the
financial year. At the end of the interim period, the
Group applies the same impairment testing,
recognition and reversal criteria as it would at the
end of the financial year.
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Work-in-progress

Costs incurred on development projects with an
intention of outright sale as technology transfer are
recognised as work-in-progress when it is probable that
the project will be a success considering its commercial
and technological feasibility, and only if the cost can be
measured reliably. Work-in-progress is recognised as cost
of sales in accordance with the performance requirements
and contractual terms as stated in the contracts.

Work-in-progress is stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. The cost of work-in-progress comprises
raw materials, direct labour, other direct cost and related
production overheads. Net realisable value is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of

business, less applicable variable selling expenses.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at
fair value and thereafter stated at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less any allowances for
impairment of doubtful debts (see note 2(i)), except
where the receivables are interest-free loans made to
related parties without any fixed repayment terms or the
effects of discounting would be immaterial. In such
cases, the receivables are stated at cost less allowance

for any impairments for doubtful debts.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at

fair value less attributable transaction costs.

Subsequent to initial recognition, interest-bearing
borrowings are stated at amortised cost with any
difference between the amount initially recognised and
redemption value being recognised in profit or loss over
the period of the borrowings, together with any interest

and fees payable, using the effective interest method.

(m) Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair
value and subsequently stated at amortised cost unless
the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which

case they are stated at cost.

Q)

()

®
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(n) Convertible notes which do not contain an equity

component

At initial recognition, the derivative component of
convertible notes is measured at fair value and
presented as part of derivative financial instruments (see
note 2(e)). Any excess of proceeds over the amount
initially recognised as the derivative component is
recognised as the liability component. Transaction
costs that relate to the issue of convertible notes are
allocated to the liability and derivative components in
proportion to the allocation of proceeds. The portion of
the transaction costs relating to the liability component
is recognised initially as part of the liability. The
portion relating to the derivative component is

recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The derivative component is subsequently remeasured
in accordance with note 2(e). The liability component is
subsequently carried at amortised cost. The interest
expense recognised in profit or loss on the liability
component is calculated using the effective interest
method.

If notes are converted, the carrying amounts of the
derivative and liability components are transferred to
share capital and share premium as consideration for the
shares issued. If notes are redeemed, any difference
between the amount paid and the carrying amounts of

both components is recognised in profit or loss.

(0) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on
hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short term, highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash
and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value, having been within three months of maturity at
acquisition. Bank overdrafts that are repayable on
demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management are also included as a component of cash
and cash equivalents for the purpose of the consolidated

cash flow statement.
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(p) Employee benefits (p) B RAEF

() e BRI KA R E SR et 2 ok

(i) Short term employee benefits and contributions

to defined contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement
plans and the cost of non-monetary benefits are
accrued in the year in which the associated services
are rendered by employees. Where payment or
settlement is deferred and the effect would be
material, these amounts are stated at their present

values.

(i) Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to employees
is recognised as an employee cost with a
corresponding increase in the share-based payment
reserve within equity. The fair value is measured at
the grant date using the binomial lattice model,
taking into account the terms and conditions upon
which the options were granted. Where the
employees have to meet vesting conditions before
becoming unconditionally entitled to the options,
the total estimated fair value of the options is spread
over the vesting period, taking into account the

probability that the options will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of share
options that is expected to vest is reviewed. Any
resulting adjustment to the cumulative fair value
recognised in prior years is charged / credited to the
profit or loss for the year of the review, unless the
original employee expenses qualify for recognition
as an asset, with a corresponding adjustment to the
capital reserve. On the vesting date, the amount
recognised as an expense is adjusted to reflect the
actual number of options that vest (with a
corresponding adjustment to the capital reserve)
except where forfeiture is only due to not achieving
vesting conditions that relate to the market price of
the Company’s shares. The equity amount is
recognised in the capital reserve until either the
options are exercised (when they are included in the
amount recognised in share capital for the shares
issued) or the options expire (when it is released

directly to retained profits or losses).
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(iii) Contribution to defined contribution retirement
benefit plans

The Group entities in Mainland China participate
in defined contribution retirement benefit plans
organised by relevant government authorities for
its employees in Mainland China and contribute to
these plans based on certain percentage of the
salaries of the employees on a monthly basis, up to
a maximum fixed monetary amount, as stipulated by
the relevant government authorities. The government
authorities undertake to assume the retirement
benefit obligations payable to all existing and
future retired employees under these plans.

(9) Income Taxes

Income taxes for the year comprise current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities.
Current tax and movements in deferred tax assets and
liabilities are recognised in profit or loss except to the
extent they relate to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which
case the relevant amounts of tax are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period, and any
adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences, respectively, being
the differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their
tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused
tax losses and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities and all deferred tax assets, to the extent it is
probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the asset can be utilised, are recognised.
Future taxable profits that may support the recognition
of deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences include those that will arise from the
reversal of existing taxable temporary differences,
provided those differences relate to the same taxation
authority and the same taxable entity, and are expected
to reverse either in the same period as the expected
reversal of the deductible temporary difference or in a
period into which a tax loss arising from the deferred tax
asset can be carried back or forward. The same criteria
are adopted when determining whether existing taxable
temporary differences support the recognition of
deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses and
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credits, that is, those differences are taken into account
if they relate to the same taxation authority and the same
taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in a period, or
periods, in which the tax loss or credit can be utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from goodwill not deducible for tax purposes
and the initial recognition of assets or liabilities that
affect neither accounting nor taxable profits (provided
they are not part of a business combination), and
temporary differences relating to investments in
subsidiaries to the extent that, in the case of taxable
differences, the Group controls the timing of the
reversal and it is probable that the differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the case of
deductible differences, unless it is probable that they
will reverse in the future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured
based on the expected manner of realisation or
settlement of the carrying amount of the assets and
liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period. Deferred tax
assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed
at the end of the reporting period and is reduced to the
extent it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow the related tax benefit
to be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the
extent it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset
against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets
against deferred tax liabilities, if the Company or the
Group has the legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and the

following additional conditions are met:

In the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Company or the Group intends either to settle on a
net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the

liability simultaneously; or

In the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if
they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either:
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- the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which, in each future
period in which significant amounts of deferred
tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled
or recovered, intend to realise the current tax
assets and settle the current tax liabilities on a
net basis or realise and settle simultaneously.

(r) Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of
uncertain timing or amount when the Group has a legal
or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value of
money is material, provisions are stated at the present
value of the expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless
the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

(s) Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable. Provided it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be
measured reliably, revenue is recognised in profit or
loss as follows:

(i) Revenues from contracted clinical research services

Revenues from contracted clinical research services
are recognised over the fixed terms of the contracts
or, where appropriate, as the related costs are
incurred. Milestone payments in connection with
research and development or commercialisation
agreements are recognised when they are earned in
accordance with the applicable performance
requirements and contractual terms.

Payments received that are related to future
performance are deferred and recorded as revenues
as they are earned over the specified future
performance periods.
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(i) Other service income

Service income is recognised when the relevant
services are rendered and the respective amount of
revenue can be measured reliably.

(iii) Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply
with the conditions attaching to them and that the
grants will be received.

Government grants that are receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already
incurred or for the purpose of giving immediate
financial support to the Group with no future related
costs are recognised in the statement of
comprehensive income in the period in which they
become receivable.

(iv) Dividend income

Dividend income from unlisted investments is
recognised when the shareholder’s right to receive
payment is established.

(v) Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method.

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporting
period. Exchange gains and losses are recognised in
profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates. Non-monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies that are stated at fair
value are translated using the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the dates the fair values were measured.
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The results of foreign operations are translated into
Renminbi at the exchange rates approximating the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates of
transactions. Statement of financial position items are
translated into Renminbi at the closing foreign
exchange rates at the end of the reporting period. The
resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated separately in
equity in the exchange reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative
amount of the exchange differences relating to that
foreign operation is reclassified from equity to profit or
loss when the profit or loss on disposal is recognised.

(uw) Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready
for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of
those assets, until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs

eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they are incurred.

(V) Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.
Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of
new shares or options are shown in equity as a
deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

(w) Related parties

(@) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is

related to the Group if that person:
(i)has control or joint control over the Group;
(ii)has significant influence over the Group; or

(i1)is a member of the key management personnel of

the Group or the Group’ s parent.
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(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(i) The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary, and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others).

(ii) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of
a member of a group of which the other entity
is a member).

(iii) Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the third
entity.

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group.

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by
a person identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of
a parent of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of which
it is a party provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the
Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence,
or be influenced by, that person in their dealings
with the entity.

(x) Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each
segment item reported in the financial statements,
are identified from the financial information
provided regularly to the Group’s most senior
executive management for the purposes of
allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Goup’s various lines of business
and geographical locations.
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Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and are
similar in respect of the nature of products and services,
the nature of production processes, the type or class of
customers, the methods used to distribute the products or
provide the services, and the nature of the regulatory
environment, Operating segments which are not
individually material may be aggregated if they share a
majority of these criteria.

The Group operates in a single segment and no segmental
analysis is presented.

3. ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

(a) Critical accounting judgements in applying the
Group’s accounting policies

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in note 2, the directors of the
Company are required to make judgments, estimates
and assumption about the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and other factors
that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis.  Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current and
future periods.

(b) Sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning
the future, and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that
have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.
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Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The Group’s management determines the estimated
useful lives for its property, plant and equipment. These
estimates are based on the historical experience of the
actual useful lives of property, plant and equipment of
similar nature and function. They could change
significantly as a result of technical innovations and
competitor actions in response to severe industry cycles.
Depreciation charges will be reassessed where useful live
are different from the previous estimations, or they will
write-off or write-down obsolete assets that have been
abandoned or sold.

Impairment of receivables

The Group’s management determines the provisions for
impairments of trade and other receivables. Such
estimates are based on the collectability of trade and other
receivables. Provisions for impairment are applied to
trade and other receivables where events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the balances may not be
collectible. The identification of doubtful debts requires
the use of judgments and estimates. Where the
expectation is different from the original estimate, such
difference will impact the carrying amount of receivables
and doubtful debt expense in the period in which such
estimate is changed.

Impairment of investments in subsidiaries

The Group follows the guidance of HKAS 36 to
determine when investments in subsidiaries are impaired.
This determination requires significant judgments. In
making these judgments, the Group evaluates, among
other factors, the duration and extent to which the fair
values of investments are less than cost; and the financial
health of and near-term business outlook for an investee,
including factors such as industry and sector
performance, changes in technology and operational and
financing cash flow.

Provision for legal claims

The Group reviews the status of all open legal claims at
the end of the reporting period and ascertains the
probability and amount of compensation payable for each
legal claim to determine the provision for legal claims.
However, the actual results of each legal claim may be
different from the estimation and profit or loss could be
affected by differences in this estimation.
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Net realisable value of work-in-progress

The Group’s management determines the net realisable
value of work-in-progress. The determination requires
judgments of the accomplishment of certain stages of
milestones during the process of new drugs development.
Where the actual outcomes or expectations in future
are different from the original estimates, such
differences will impact the carrying value of
work-in-progress and provisions for charges/write-backs
in the period such estimates change.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may
not be recoverable. The recoverable amounts are
determined based on fair values less costs to sell
calculations or market valuations. These calculations
require the use of judgments and estimates.

Management judgments are required in the area of
asset impairment particularly in assessing (i) whether
an event has occurred that may indicate that the
related asset may not be recoverable; (ii) whether the
carrying value of an asset can be supported by the
recoverable amount, being the higher of fair value less
costs to sell or net present value of future cash flows
which are estimated based upon the continued use of
the asset in the business; and (iii) the appropriate key
assumptions to be applied in preparing cash flow
projections including whether these cash flow
projections are discounted using an appropriate rate.
Changing the assumptions in the cash flow
projections could affect the net present values used in
the impairment tests and as a result affect the Group’s
financial position and results of operations.

Income taxes

The Group is principally subject to income taxes in
the PRC. The determination of the provision for
income taxes involves significant judgments as there
are many transactions and calculations for which the
ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the
ordinary course of business. Where the final tax
outcome of these matters is different from the amount
that were initially recorded, such difference will
impact the current income tax provision and deferred
income tax assets and liabilities in the period in which
such determination is made.
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Recognition of deferred income tax assets depends on
management’s expectation of future taxable profits that
will be available against which the deferred income tax
assets can be utilised. The outcome of their actual
utilisation may be different.

4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-maker. The Group provides phamaceutical
development and product commercialisation services.
These services are subject to similar business risks, and
resources are allocated based on what is beneficial to the
Group in enhancing the value as a whole rather than any
specific unit. The Group’s chief operating decision-maker
considers that the performance assessment of the Group
should be based on the profit/(loss) before taxation of the
Group as a whole. Therefore, management considers
there to be only one operating segment under the
requirements of HKFRS 8.
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TS 7 ity o ACSR I 1) 5 B35 2 B B O
PERARHE AR S o 7% B8 2% S5 SE B 1Y S 3 SR B A T
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Breakdown of revenue from services is as follows: NS FEIRAEanT :
2015 2014
ST -
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREETIT NG T
Contracted clinical research services (VPS) BRI R R IR N 12,275 5,579
Post marketing research and academic oA RIS E S 5,420
promotion services (PMS) TR B %
Other medical services HABSEE BN 2,802 377
20,497 5,956

Other medical services included registration, application
and testing services.

The Group primarily operates in the PRC and its
revenues are derived in the PRC for both years. Revenues
from customers of the corresponding years contributing over

10% of total sales of the Group are as follows:

LA Bt Sk, R e s

ALRIA T B R 2, A W {1 4 B P9 EL R
PPACPT B B o AR BEAK B % 7 2 i ah A
SE MR B 109 A EZ BRI T :

2015 2014

R B udE

RMB’000 RMB’000

AREET T NR¥ETTT

Customer A (1) ZA (1) - 1,018

Customer B (1) 2B (1) - 1, 000
Customer C (2) ZC (2) 4,926 -

(1)Contracted clinical research services (VPS)
(2)Post marketing research and academic promotion services
(PMS)

() B HIER ARSI
(2) TR IR RIS B AT HE i I s
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5. OTHER INCOME 5. HAA

2015 2014

—R—HAE e =tk S

RMB’000 RMB’000

AREETIT ANRETIT
Compensation income A 28 94
Government grants (Note) BURREED (Bt 668 108
Interest income FLEHCAN 7 6
Overprovision of litigation claims in prior years AR A7 R AR 0 1 R R A 346 312
Overprovision of staff cost in prior years DATTAF B AR ) B L oA 332 -
Overprovision of other expenses in prior years AR 47 R AR 1 oAt 2 367 -
Reversal of impairment losses on other receivables At SRR B R 43 ] 89 672
Reversal of impairment losses on trade receivables AR ok (4 2 Tl - 130
Dividend income JRAMA - 13
Other Hthy 39 182
1,876 1,517

Note: Government grants in the years ended 31 December
2015 and 2014 represented unconditional cash awards

granted by government authorities.

6. (LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

(Loss)/profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/

LR

6. BRBLRT (51R) At 7
BRETHT OB 1R) As A Sk A -

R L ) == [
= LA BERUBOT R B 2 OB

(crediting):
2015 2014
TR TR ZE—PYA
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ANR¥FIT
(a) Finance costs OE=%N
Interest on: FESZH:
Bank borrowings wholly repayable within HAEN A e EMEIR TR TE 132 148
one year FILE
Convertible bonds AR 685 14
Other HAh - 8
Total interest expenses on financial liabilities A FEFI A F ARG 1
not at fair value through profit or loss SRR B 817 170
(b) Staff costs (including directors’ emoluments) (b) A LA (G4
Salaries, bonuses and awards e T 6,484 3,769
Contributions to defined contribution retirement plans  FHESEFGRIRFT= 2 Ak 851 989
Share-based payments PABAS 2t £ 1,341 -
Other benefits HAAEF - 12
8, 676 4,770
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2015 2014
ZE A TR
RMB’000 RMB’000
ANRETIT N
(¢) Other items (o) HAtIHH
Auditors’ remuneration TS T 490 511
Litigation claims P EEE 1,722 2,536
Depreciation e 1, 207 1,154
Operating lease charges in respect of rented premises  FFPIZERIAE L2 H 179 392
Impairment losses on other receivables HoAth RGBT - 1, 066
Impairment losses on trade receivables WG R - 194
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment HEYEE. s Mo fistE - 117
Write-off of other receivables Hoph OGS - 40
7. INCOME TAX 7. e
(a) Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit or (a) BB HRMR Z FIHI T
loss represents:
2015 2014
SE o B
RMB’000 RMB’000
ANRET T ARETIT
Current tax — PRC Enterprise Income Tax BURRRIE - e A RILFN B SETS
Provision for the year RN 111 32
No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made IR AS £E A B e 2 8 R R, AR R — 1
as the Group had no assessable profits generated in R VARG I B A ISR
Hong Kong for the year ended 31 December 2015
(2014: Nil).

YNNI N g A /A O S N B o [ B S TR E i
ENEE TG RN RILRBEAZEEREY (DL
R TR ) FFE R . AREER E
—HFEBHBREE#H15%-25% (- F P
15%-25%) o

The provision for PRC Enterprise Income Tax has been
calculated on the estimated assessable profits for the
year according to the relevant laws and regulations. The
applicable income tax rate ranges from 15% to 25% as
at 31 December 2015 (2014: 15% to 25%).
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2015F i E

ANNUAL REPORT
BE-F-AE+"A=+—HIEE
For the year ended 31 December 2015

(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting

Loss/profit at applicable tax rates:

BIBREME

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(b) BT T B s B R AR IR R R R SR

2015 2014

e S 02 —ER—4E

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARHET I N R¥ETIT
(Loss)/profit before taxation PRFERT GEHH) AR (3, 376) 44,117

Notional tax on (Loss)/profit before taxation calculated  F%&/ BT A1 E k(w8 H 2 RIS AR
at the applicable tax rate of 25% AR (ETH) iR S 7 (844) 11, 029
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses AN 2 B - 275
Tax effect of non-taxable revenue AERBI A B 2 - (13, 546)
Tax effect of unused tax losses not recognised ARAUEAEFIEERR 2 A BU I 2,696 2,450
Py 7

Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses not recognised H SRR MR BUs 2 (1, 290) -
Tax holiday o - (176)
Tax effect of deferred tax not recognised FERIAHER IR T 2 Fs i 2 (451) -
Actual tax expense BRI 111 32
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8. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 8. HHME
Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to Section 383(1) of the Hong MRS CATMEBD 38306 % «An] (P HREY
Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of BhY KRG SE2H I W R A T BRI T

Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation are as follows:

Contributions to

Salaries, allowances and defined contribution
Directors’ fees benefits in kind retirement plans Share based payments Total
v Frdr. U AR RAREHRIFER VARG R A 3K At
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
THRHAE TR U TERE TEVE S TERRE TR PUE TR RAE TR IE TR AU
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARHEETIC ARMETC ARETC AR ARBTC AR¥TC ARWTC AR ARWTE ARMTT

Executive directors
BT
Mr. William Xia GUO

P

- - 1,130 20 - 38 546 - 1,676 58

Dr. Maria Xue Mei SONG

- 283 151 85 84 30 - 398 235
REH

Non-executive directors
EEAEE S

Dr. Nathan Xin ZHANG

ik

Independent non-executive directors
AR TS

Dr. Shou Yuan WU

RFTC

50 50 - - - - 6 - 56 50

Dr. Bing Hui NI
(appointed on 31 March 2015)

iz
(742015473 731 HARIE)

Mr. Mark Gavin Lotter
(appointed on 17 February 2015)

Mr. Mark Gavin Lotter
(20155217 FARIE)

Mr Paul CONTOMICHALOS
(resigned on 21 January 2015)

Mr Paul CONTOMICH-ALOS
(201541 H21 HEHT,)

50 50 1,413 171 85 122 600 - 2,148 343

TEEREBEERQATE3
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There was no arrangement under which a director waived
or agreed to waive any emoluments in respect of the year
ended 31 December 2015 (2014: Nil). During the years
ended 31 December 2015 and 2014, no emoluments was
paid by the Group to the directors of the Company as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group, or as

compensation for loss of office.

9. INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

Of the five (2014: five) individuals with the highest
emoluments, two (2014: one) are directors whose
emoluments are disclosed in note 8. The aggregate of the
emoluments in respect of the remaining three (2014: four)
individual are as follows:

B RHE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

EMBUEE = F—TFE+ A =+ H R = F -4+
THE - HA, MBSk R R
GRLHE  PRMEBUEE R A A = H R
FoWEF A= HA, AEREMEA ST 5
T HE AR R AN AR 5 R A
R BB H

9. mEME AL

R MEA L, WA (CFWE: —8) &
EH, WEZ SRS E . Hig=4 (%I
CNUPAR L SN b LI

2015 2014

kAR B4R

RMB’000 RMB’000

AREETIT ANRWETIT
Salaries and allowances Hrde N EAR 4 418 520
Contributions to defined contribution retirement plan BEY N o 68 53
Share based payments VAR ZAEE A0 15 -
501 573

The emoluments of each of the individuals with the highest
emoluments are within the band of RMBS$ nil to
RMB$1,000,000 in both years.
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10. (LOSS) / EARNINGS PER SHARE 10. 828 (&) /BF

(@) Basic (loss)/earnings per share (a) FRRRFEA (E18) 17 )

Basic (loss)/earnings per share is calculated by
dividing the loss attributable to ordinary equity
shareholders of the Company of RMB3,353,000
(2014: profit of RMB44,117,000) and the weighted
average of 915,272,000 ordinary shares (2014:
381,154,000 shares) in issue during the year,
calculated as follows:

1. Weighted average number of ordinary shares

IR A R TR A T RRERR A B R A [
#3353,0000C (- E T4 R R#E44,117,00000)
TN CBEA T 8 I 2 IR ST 44 915,272,000 /08
W (CFE—PU4E: 381,154,000 @) wHE, H
FHEWT

1. T B T2

2015 2014

AR —EusE

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR#ETIT ANR¥ETTT
Issued ordinary shares at 1 January A —H2Z BB T mAk 915, 272 366, 109
Effect of share options exercised AT 2 52 - 15, 045
Issued ordinary shares at 31 December WA= B SR T AR 915, 272 381, 154
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(b) Diluted (loss)/earnings per share (b) FEE (ER)/BF)
The diluted loss per share attributable to the shareholders BWE AT+ H =+ —H I FE 2 SR
of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2015 is R R AR ISR A G TR, RIRAT (2 i) R
the same as the basic loss per share because conversion of B S IR AT I B

convertible bonds and share options only decreases the

loss per share and, therefore, is anti-dilutive.

The calculation of diluted earnings per share attributable TR YAEF T A = H AR B R T AR A
to the shareholders of the Company for the year ended 31 3w R N o s N BN B 44,131,000
December 2014 is based on the profit attributable to Tt i A BB AR 28R 2 308 2 s B A R
ordinary equity shareholders of the Company of HE% 2 3 TR T 1) IR 458,654,000 /B 1 B w1 5
RMB44,131,000 and the weighted average number of , HEHEm R
ordinary shares of 458,654,000 shares, calculated as
follows:
(i)Profit attributable to ordinary equity shares of the ) RCRERF A NIE 3R] ()
Company (diluted)
2014
—E—usE
RMB’000
NN
Profit attributable to the owners of the Company JEHER A A A 44, 117
Interest expenses on convertible notes (net of tax) TR EFE (i) 14
44,131
(i))Weighted average number of ordinary shares (diluted) (i) 5 R 2 BT SA Bl ()
2014
TR
RMB’000
ANR¥ETTT
Weighted average number of ordinary shares at 31 S Y = B e = P 3 21 2y -8
December JBc8
Effect of deemed issues of share under the Company’s IS PR A 2 ) 2 IR e 1o AR ARy 381, 154
share option scheme and conversion of convertible notes ~ ZEEf 5 iH [l 2 528 77, 500
458, 654
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11. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
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11. 900 T BRiEE

Leasehold ~ Machinery and

improvements equipment Motor vehicles Total
PSS TR KA L At
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ANRHETIT ARHTIL  ARETIC ARWETIC

Cost:
At 1 January 2014
Disposals

At 31 December 2014,
1 January 2015 and
31 December 2015

Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 2014

Charge for the year
Write-back on disposals

At 31 December 2014 and 1
January 2015

Charge for the year

At 31 December 2015

Net book value:

At 31 December 2015

At 31 December 2014

A
R —YE—H—H

g

A FE Y EF T H=F—H,
TER—RE—H—H N
A=t H
BEtE:

AT —AE

—H—H

AR AT BB N T Y A ]
PR PYEAS T H =4 —H
I B
PG YNE

AR —FAE+—H = —H
TTAIHE -

AR —FAE+—H =+ —H

REEEA A=

5,672 19,490 1,164 26,326
- (564) (519) (1,083)
5,672 18,926 645 25,243
5618 12,658 769 19,045
19 1,007 128 1,154
- (452) (514) (966)
5,637 13,213 383 19,233
11 1,138 58 1,207
5,648 14,351 441 20,440
24 4,575 204 4,803
35 5713 262 6,010
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12. NEW DRUG TECHNOLOGIES

Cost:

At 1 January 2014, 31 December 2014,
1 January 2015 and 31 December 2015

Accumulated amortisation and impairment
At 1 January 2014, 31 December 2014,
1 January 2015 and 31 December 2015

Net book value:

At 31 December 2015
At 31 December 2014

JEA:

R T P+ -

The new drug technologies included above have finite
useful lives over which the assets are amortised. The
amortisation period for development costs incurred on the
Group’s new drug technologies is five years.

No amortisation charges (2014: Nil) are included in
“administrative expenses” in the consolidated statement of

profit or loss during the year.

13. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

The following list contains only the particulars of
subsidiaries which principally affected the results, assets
or liabilities of the Group. The class of shares held is
ordinary unless otherwise stated.
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12. BrEERAT

W PE -l Z & Et =,
—ER-TE-HHE R -RETF A=

—F P A=A,

y — R

13.

Total
it
RMB’000
A RT°000

16,681

(16,681)

LRI LR BAA BRI, 0T B
(] PG o AN BB L AT T M B A A 2
W R LA

TR R TR PR A 2 R AR
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Proportion of ownership interest

PR SR

Place of Particulars of Group” s Held by
incorporation issued and paid effective the Held by a Principal
Name of subsidiary and business up capital interest company  subsidiary Activities
I B A T4 TN B CLET A Z St AAT I g2 T
B S JEIRAGE Fify ity CEEEE]
Ventureph: British Virgin Islands -
cnfureptam s Virein fsfands Us$100 100% 100% Tnvestment holdin,
Laboratories (BVI) ( “BVI") ¢
o 10057C Ediicads
Limited (“VP(BVI)”) SR LR BV )
Venovo Pharma US$1 - Investment holdi
, BVI : 100% 100% nvestment holding
Us Il’lC( VP(US) ) BVI ]%fn ﬁﬂ&&ﬁ
Ina t e
VPSCRO Group BVI Us$1 100% B 100% ol
Inc. (“VPSCRO” BVI _
¢ ) [ES
Research and development of drugs, natural drugs and synthetic
drugs; technological transfer of and services for the research and
development of biodrugs, natural drugs and synthetic drugs;
N Beiiine. the PRC pharmacodynamic and clinical research of drugs
2N elying, the UD$200.000
R AT N o 100% - 100%  TRAHBSEA L KRS A DI
HE b 200,00095¢ Gkt TOORHENY Tty AR 2 B BT R BT 5 4.5 2 3%
T MERRRES
Research and development of drugs, natural drugs and synthetic
drugs; technological transfer of and services for the research and
e A B Beijing, the PRC development of biodrugs, natural drugs and synthetic drugs;
JentE A h @Ht; ) UD$200,000 100% _ 100% pharmacodynamic and clinical research of drugs
B A BN ETT
SRR AR A E] 200,0005%7C
T * OLSCR PR KONHER T ERAih, TR ReE
B RGN Am“zﬁ%ﬁi%&ﬁ&%, B2 B
WEFE R M RIS
Research and development of drugs, natural drugs and synthetic
drugs; technological transfer of and services for the research and
™ iiine. the ~ development of biodrugs, natural drugs and synthetic drugs;
Elan e f;%;iihe PRC UD$200,000 100% _ 100% pharmacodynamic and clinical research of drugs
LRI PALA 200,000557T
FE B i INEE I NS A ST
WFTE M BB SE  CIRBE I KB A N, BT M B A1)
B RINGE S T 5 I BRI R R, B 2 40K
T M ERRRFS
Research and development of new drug preparations, raw
materials, supplementary materials and biodrugs technological
b i A g Beijing, the PRC UD$865.000 transfer and services
s i : 100% - 100% . i ‘ N
B IR A T AR A 865.00025 70 RoE R BB AR PR BRI R
- INRE) A 5 B
Research and development of drugs, natural drugs and synthetic
drugs; technological transfer of and services for the research and
N SR Taizh he PRC development of biodrugs, natural drugs and synthetic drugs;
EIES r;%lljl; ¢ PR RMB1,000,000 100% _ 100% pharmacodynamic and clinical research of drugs
HARAR JRH1,000,0007¢ ) )
WF MBS BE N TRIREE R K B REE N F 5T B A1
Bk RINGE S KA R BRI B R, Bk 2 B0
BT MG RAF ST
Research and development of drugs, natural drugs and synthetic
drugs; technological transfer of and services for the research and
e R L A A i 3 development of biodrugs, natural drugs and synthetic drugs;
AP D I::Ial%lir?%he PRC US$360.,000 100% _ 100% pharmacodynamic and clinical research of drugs
RS it 360,0005C
= ﬁﬁﬁ&%ﬁ%mﬂﬂ* RIRGE S A3 I, RSB PR )
E TENIPN *uu&/‘rz*ﬁzﬂﬁﬁiﬁrﬁéﬁﬁria‘% M B
e TR
) Manufacturing and sales of active pharmaceutical ingredients
PrT A Hanzhong, the PRC US§600,000 s100 1o products
o - 3 . o - Y%
SEAL TATIRA) B 600,000 7% B R A ) P

TEEREEEFERAAEI
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The following table lists out the information relating to
FPEY L A B EEAL TR TR, the only subsidiary of
the Group which has non-controlling interest (NCI). The

B R R B E
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NRESIALEE G A (TR
) ARG O mE L e A TR IR AR
B2 ¥kt T OCESZ M R VR AT 2 W]

summarized financial information presented below AT = S8
represents the amounts before any inter-company elimination.
2015 2014
TR AU
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR®ETIT ARBETT
NCI percentage et iR 43 49% 49%
Current assets B A 10 30
Non-current assets e E 5 281
Current liabilities =L (16) (38)
Net liabilities/assets ) EE 1 273
Carrying amount of NCI et b 25 2 MR THIME - 134
Revenue LN -
Loss for the year ALE TR (274) (65)
Total comprehensive loss A TH SRR (274) (65)
Loss allocated to NCI IrIC 2 e B 26 2 i ) (134) (32)
Cash flows used in operating activities IR SR (19) (33)
14. WORK-IN-PROGRESS 14. fEEf
2015 2014
RN TEFRPUE
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARBETT AR¥ETC
Cost JHAS 96,208 95,871
Less: Provisions for impairments ol R i el (A (93,535) (90,369)
2,673 5,502
The movements in the provisions for impairments ofwork-in- TEE M Hs s < S Ean T
progress are as follows:
Contracted Non—contracted Total
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
Calgy AFTHY At
AR 000 AE¥E 000 AR 000
At 1 January 2014 AT E—PUE—H—H 47,500 41,229 88,729
Provision for impairment for 2014 74 FE B 485 1,640 - 1,640
At 31 December 2014 and P=EE = 49.140 41,229 90,369
1 January 2015 ZE—NFE—H—H
Provision for impairment for 2015 A4 YR 3,166 - 3,166
52,306 41,229 93,535

At 31 December 2015

I s i Y E [ N =
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The impairments for contracted work-in-progress were
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ELRT AT AEE S VR IR PR A SE & 20 OB R B 4 2
B, AR KRS S A I A P T A AR P45 1L 3 A R T o

due to the total contract cost exceeding the total contract

value while the impairments for

work-in-progress was due to the

non-contracted PDS projects.

15. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLE

non-contracted

A FRMEE .

suspension  of

15. RN AR R R R

2015 2014

“F-nfE 2R

RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

ARWTT AREETIC
Trade receivables JEW R 1,166 1,293
Bills receivable G 224 2,202 -
Less: allowance for doubtful debts Wol: RIFE PR - (1,243)
3,368 50

(a) Ageing analysis

The Group grants a credit period normally ranging from
15 days to 30 days to its customers (2014: ranging from
15 days to 30 days). The bills receivable are non-interest
bearing bank acceptance bills and are aged within 6
months as at 31 December 2015. The Group seeks to
maintain strict control over its outstanding receivables

(a) HRHE I

Z AT R o

and overdue balances are reviewed regularly by

management.

As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis
of trade receivables, based on the invoice date and net of

allowance for doubtful debts, is as follows:

ZHREIIATINT -

AR 1) B % AR (B 15 H 230 H (
PR 15HE30H). IR
FRATESE o %S MR TR R B R — AR
H=A—H®&AEA N2, ARG S0 5 IR
AR AR R e 2 B 00 P 2L S e R

SR AN B BRAT

s H, RO B R (AR EOR
A IAEGRPY) 1585 5% FUYT N AT B R SR

2015 2014

TE-HE SRR

RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

ARHETIT AR®ETIT
1-30 days 1-30 H 1,166 -
61-90 days 61-90H - 50
1,166 50

TEEREEFTRAAT
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(b) Impairment of trade receivables b) JEEMAU R 2 A JRENA S 48 2 Yl A

Impairment losses in respect of trade receivable are B AN S A T S T AT REME NS, A5
recorded using an allowance account unless the Group is JREMAC FR A R IR A S < el AR A FH R A R R B
satisfied that recovery of the amount is remote, in which AT ]2 AT REEING A B R e TR B A I
case the impairment loss is written off against trade HRAON EN 224 FR sy (RBHE20) (1) -
receivables directly (see note 2(i)(i)).

A AR RN S (WS MBI#IERE)

the year, including both specific and collective loss wr:

The movement in the allowance for doubtful debts during

components, is as follows:

2015 2014
e =S T S— S I
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR®ETE AR®TIT

At 1 January w—H—H 1,243 4,366
RSN 25! (1,243) (4,059)

Uncollectible amounts written off

Provision for impairments during the year RIS 2 - 1,066
Reversal of impairment losses during the year P B FE 438 ] - (130)
At 31 December wt+—H=+—H - 1,243

(o) 3 SE B 2 RSO B AL S5

(c) Trade receivables that are not impaired

2015 2014
“F-nE ZTUE
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARMETIE ARBTIC

Neither past due nor impaired SR R 1,166 -
2 to 3 months past due T AN 22— H - 50
1,166 50

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to
a number of independent customers that have a good
track record with the Group. Based on past experience,
management believes that no impairment allowance is
necessary in respect of these balances as there has not
been a significant change in credit quality and the
balances are still considered fully recoverable.

72 CHINA HEALTH GROUP INC.

gl ER ESE i v e 2 2 I urc]
S P BRI A5 FEACER BT AR AL %
, A ILAE S R TR AR ﬁ@)ﬁﬁﬁﬂi/A
E'JEJ%\@'@M’F IR B , [ IRl i LA R A7 7T
ellEl. A I_IIEM\E'JEEE%,“;J@%T#@ (SR i LI

o




BT E
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

20155 E#RE

ANNUAL REPORT
BEZE-—AE+"A=1+—HIEE
For the year ended 31 December 2015

16. PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 16. TEAT SR R oAb REIAGER
2015 2014
eSS TR S S U
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR®ETIT ARBTIT
Prepayments TEAT K 538 30
Deposits R4 25 25
Other receivables HoAth K 769 4,121
At 31 December TR A R 1,332 4,176
Less: allowance for doubtful debts W RIEARIERE - (3.676)
1,332 500
(a) Impairment of other receivables (a) H A SR SRR B
Impairment losses in respect of other receivable are W A A 4 15 S i ] % S 2 AT B, A R
recorded using an allowance account unless the Group is A RO R S U 8 2 Yol (s 2 (0 FH A A5 R e
satisfied that recovery of the amount is remote, in which o A AT Z AT REVE VS A B IR e TR B R
case the impairment loss is written off against trade W RO B RS R s (B 23) () .
receivables directly (see note 2(i)(i)).
The movements in the allowance for doubtful debts SRIEIRBEE AN TN 2 5588 (SRR R e )
during the year, including both specific and collective loss mr:
components, are as follows:
2015 2014

TER-RE DR
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AREETIC ARETIC

At 1 January
Written off during the year
Reversal of impairment losses during the year

Provision for impairments during the year

At 31 December

H—H—H 3,676 4,154
AT R 2 A (3.587) -
B s R 1 [E] (89) (672)

e E T - 194
Wt H=+—H - 3,676

TEEEREBEERSATI
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17. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

(a) Cash and cash equivalents comprises:

RIBBEME

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

17. BlE B EHHER

(a) Bl BBl 55 (EIH H A4

2015 2014
AR TEPUE
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARIEFT AR
Cash at bank and on hand SRATHS (7 M A7 Bl & 6,775 3,878

(b)Reconciliation of (loss)/profit before taxation to cash

generate from operations:

(b) BRERHT (1R /i Al

SECE ST IR Bl 2 Bk

2015 2014
“F—hAE ZE U
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR¥EFT  AR¥EFT

(Loss)/profit before taxation BRFTHT (58 s (3,376) 44,117
Adjustments for: P
Depreciation e 1,207 1,154
Dividends income TR - (13)
Interest expenses FESEH 817 162
Interest income ISUION (7 (6)
Impairment losses on work-in-progress A i s 11 3,166 1,640
Loss on revaluation of derivative financial liabilities R4 A 1R 2,731 307
Share-based payment expenses DA R i (3K 1,341 -
Exchange loss/(gain) on derivative financial liabilities A Al A BB R (R 343 (2)
Reversal of impairment losses on other receivables HAb RSB E TR (89) (672)
Loss on write-off on disposal of property, plant and equipment &2 Ji Kk 2 518 - 117
Gain on waiver of old convertible notes and interest thereon F T AR R AR B R - (52,897)
Impairment losses on trade receivables JEENSC A s T - 1,066
Impairment losses on other receivables At EGH B R - 194
Write-off of other receivables HAb RS - 40
Gain on disposal of financial assets at fair A FEFT R AR 221
value through profit or loss ERE A R EEE - (16)
Reversal of impairment losses on trade receivables R Dl (4 [ - (130)
Operating cash flows before changes in working capital R G R AT R S TR (T Bl 6,133 (4,939)
Increase in work-in-progress TR IS (337) (2,395)
(Increase)/decrease in trade and bill receivables TR (B i > (3,318) 331
(Increase)/decrease in prepayments and other receivables oA ECER ) 1> (743) 1,403
Increase in other payables and accruals JEE AR IOR EL At e A s 3,266 1,870
(Decrease)/increase in receipts in advance TR ) 88 b (1,472) 3,942
Cash generated from operations B TS 4 3,529 212
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18. PAYBLES AND ACCRUED CHARGES

18. HALREN R R ESTE A

2015 2014
N S TG S S eE
Notes ’ ,
- RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
MIE AR ARETC
Other payables HoAth JEAT R 4,227 3,348
Accrued expenses TR H 2,550 1,539
Amounts due to related parties AR 2,987 2,987
Litigation claims payables JEAHE AR A 12,786 11,410
22,550 19,284
(@) Amounts due to related parties are unsecured, () MEAT I T 77 B8 AR G 2 A5 A T R MR

non-interest bearing and without fixed repayment terms.

(b) Several subsidiaries of the Company are defendants in
various lawsuits and claims arising out of the normal
course of the Group’s business. The amount represents
the outstanding claims payable to the plaintiffs,
according to the respective courts’ judgements.

All of the other payables are expected to be settled or

Z A8
(b) A 8] P 119 85 Ff J > W R SR 5 A T o

JEEA AR A I A (A3 e TR A IR A i 45
A

Fiv A At AT SRR AE 4 P R e Ry A R A

recognised as income within one year or are repayable on o
demand.
19. RECEIPTS IN ADVANCE 19. FRHGK
2015 2014
it B
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR®TIT ARBETT
Receipts in advance TG 24,215 25,687
At 1 January W—H—H 25,687 21,743
Cash receipts for the Year ARAFIR 12,323 8,363
Revenue recognised for the Year ARAFHETRIN (13,795) (4,419)
At 31 December it —HA=+—H 24,215 25,687

Included in the receipts in advance is an amount of
RMB6,145,000 (2014: RMB6,145,000) representing suspended
projects which are pending mutual agreement between the Group
and the customers on the final settlement in respect of those
disposits received.

R H, TERCR R EAE N R6,145,00070 (—F— U4
o N RH6,145,00070) 19 28T 45 19 18 H TR . "2 25 TR
AR B T 1 R AR B A T R RIS

TEEREBEBERLATS
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20. CONVERTIBLE NOTES AND DERIVATIVE

RIBBEME

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

20. AT BAESS RAT A A R

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Tranche 1 Tranche 2 Total
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
itk At gt
AREE” 000 A 000 AREE” 000
Movement in the convertible notes P #RIR(EZ5
— liability component: - AUf
At 1 January 2014 P E—NE—H—H 95,479 95.479
Repayments during the year AR (I (47.748) (47.748)
Waiver of principal WS ) (47,731) (47,731)
Issued during the year SENEAT - 4.830 4.830
Interest charged RS H - 14 14
At 31 December 2014 and o ENE A=
1 January 2015 HE =X —T4F—H—H - 4,844 4.844
Interest charged FE#EH - 685 685
Exchange realignment i - 250 250
At 31 December 2015 PEE-RFEFZH=+—H - 5,779 5,779
B
ALREE” 000
Movement in the convertible notes T S
— derivative component: - iR
At 1 January 2014 R ZE—E——H -
Issue of convertible notes BT AT AR 1,318
Fair value changes /NS RIEL 307
Exchange realignment SR 2)
At 31 December 2014 and RE—FE+—H =+—H 1,623
1 January 2015 K= E—HiF—H—H
Fair value change IR 2,731
Exchange realignment R 93
At 31 December 2015 RoFE-REF =4 4,447

The fair value of the derivative component of the convertible
notes was calculated using the Binominal Lattice model with

the major inputs used in the model as follow:

2015 2014
Stock price HK$0.249 HK$0.105
Expected volatility 127.66% 82.75%
Risk free rate 0.644% 0.6618%
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Any changes in the major inputs into the model will result in
changes in the fair value of the derivative component. The change
in the fair value of the derivative component during the year ended
31 December 2015 results in a fair value loss of RMB2,731,000
(2014: 307,000) which has been included in the “Loss on
revaluation of derivative financial instruments” in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income for the
year ended 31 December 2015.

Tranche 1

On 10 September 2007, the Company issued notes in an aggregate
principal amount of CHF15,000,000. Unless previously redeemed,
repurchased and cancelled or converted, any outstanding
convertible notes were to be redeemed at the redemption amount
(110% of the principal amount outstanding of the convertible
notes) on the date falling on the fifth anniversary of the date of
issue of the convertible notes. The notes have interest at the rate of

3.5% per annum payable annually.

On 4 September 2012, an extraordinary resolution was passed by
the majority of note- holders in accordance with the terms of the
convertible notes to approve the extension for payment of the
convertible notes to 10 September 2015 with an increase in the
interest rate from 3.5% to 4% per annum. The extension of the
convertible notes was also approved by the shareholders of the
Company at an extraordinary general meeting held on 20
September 2012.

The conversion price, in Swiss Francs, was equivalent to 130% of
the average closing prices of the shares of the Company as
published in the daily quotation sheets published by the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited for 30 consecutive trading days
up to and including the fifth business day prior to the closing date

per share.

The noteholders had the right to convert, at the conversion price,
the whole of the principal amount of convertible notes into shares
at any time and from time to time, from the date of issue of the
convertible notes.

On 20 July 2014, the Company came to an agreement with its
convertible noteholders. The settlement waivers of payables on
convertible notes of RMB52,897,000 included a waiver of
principle of RMB47,731,000 and a waiver of interest accrued of
RMBS5,166,000.
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FAZA 2 T BEREE 2 AR a8 W), KPR TR
ZNTHEA R fE THSD Z A PEREE
HAFEFZH =+ EkﬁEWZ%ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ&$ﬁ%E
NE#E2,731,00000 (= F U4 ANRHE307,00000), #ZHEHE
ERIAHZE T —HF+ A =+ —HIEFEZ AR
FHAM AR RN (TR Sm T H 2 AFEEE) ) HT.

mﬁ

it

R EERLFENAH, AAFE RSB %515,000,000
IR &S ( TES ) ) o BREMOKTLUER . B
] R B R AS AR I AT (5 2 B T H AR
ﬁﬁi%ﬁuﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁTﬁ&E#M$$%%MUw
WUEL AT A 06 ) v R PR o i T R B A A LA TS )
ﬁb,ﬂﬁiﬁ,¢w$%ﬁ%o

RE-TAASAEHE, FEAERE AR TR 6
5 WG G AT A 0 R T A 3 A B T PR R A A
FE—HFIATH, THBZFE B3 5% M2 4%.
AT 5 A A AR A FIERA =R — U H
S SN =LA

ﬁﬁ@%ﬁu%i%%m%oﬁﬁﬁrﬁ A E T H
A T8 TAF A (B 4E% F) 8 =8 TAE A AL w4k
Hxﬁu%EH ST H U R i P BT Y 130%

EIEFPA N FT B AR5 3047 B TR AT A I A5 SOAS IR e
A TR R 2 400 B AR 2 P AR < T 450 B R R ol
7o

REE AL S H, ARlEEAT AR R
B AW O mT I S R A A R 52,897,000,
ALFE VR S N S 47,731,000TC I AR 4, FIEA 0 A FE R BN I
#45.166,0007G »
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Tranche 2

On 24 December 2014, the Company issued unlisted convertible
notes with a face value of US$1,000,000 and a maturity date of
24 December 2016. The notes are unsecured and bear no
interest. The noteholder has the right to convert the notes into
ordinary shares at any time up to maturity at a conversion price
of HK$0.10 each, subject to anti-dilutive adjustments, or redeem
them at 100% of the nominal value of the convertible bonds upon
maturity. The Company may, at any time prior to the maturity
date, repay the outstanding principal of the notes.

The convertible notes contain two components, namely, the host
liability component and a compound derivative conponent
consisting of the conversion option and the redemption option .
The convertible bonds are denominated in USD, which is a
currency other than the Company’s functional currency. The
conversion and redemption option in the convertible bonds does
not exchange a fixed number of the Company’s own equity
instruments for a fixed amount of cash, denominated in USD.
Accordingly, the options are accounted for separately as a
derivative liability, which is not closely related to the host debt
component. The fair values of the debt component and the
derivative component were determined at the date of issue.
Subsequent to initial recognition, the debt component is carried
at amortised cost while the derivative component is measured at
fair value, with changes in fair value being recognised in profit or

loss.

The effective interest rate of the liability component on initial
recognition is 12.822% per annum.
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AR —PFEA T H U H, AN EEE T ASER1,000,000
Eorz Ak B S . U A IR R
SRR . R A TR 2 HE R el 5 AT B A i
0. 10T TTH AT I R U B A A TS IE I o AN FITTRER
AETAZ A AT R (B T A 4 iR AR

AR A W ER . ERR AR AR S AT A
P00 E 5 YRR [ SR o T R AR S OTRTHE,
HAR A RN BRRE R W o I s rh A TG [ ST
A 2 ) ] S R it TR A ] S B DA SE
TR B MBI, IRERT R BB TRt —
AT E e e, REREHTSHEIMEAN. FHA
RN A 50 20 B 2 PR R A P BB 5 R AT B R IR E
M. fERIGTHRZ AR, o ey OB TR, AT
4B H s R ER R, AR EESER ARG,

BB TA RN UGS < B BR AR AR 212,822
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21. BANK BORROWINGS
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21. ATHEK

2015 2014
“E-nAE SRR
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARHTE  AR®TIT
Bank loan SRATESR 1,500 2,000

The bank loan is unsecured and guaranteed by a director of the
Company, Song Xue Mei, Maria to the extent of RMB1,500,000
(2014: RMB2,000,000). The loan is interest bearing at a variable
rate based on the People’s Bank of China rate. The interest
during the year ranged from 5.22% to 7.20% (2014: 7.20% ) per
annum and are renewable upon maturity. The loan is repayable
on 24 November 2016 but maybe renewed upon maturity.

22.INCOME TAXES PAYABLE

(a) Current taxation in the consolidated statement of financial
position represents:

SRAT R BT A R A R H AR — o 8 5 R E M LA
ﬂkﬁﬁohﬁﬁmm@ﬁ%AE%wmmmu ZF—I
AE: AN RH2,000,0007C) mmﬁﬁﬁéﬁu%ﬁiﬂﬁf
NSRRI . R F—HF+ A =1+—HILF
F%Eﬂzﬁsmfﬁ7ﬁhjkﬂ$-mf)ﬁﬁ§

FOER —E N — A U AEE, AT H A
22. AR

() E MBI AT BUIRT IR T -

2015 2014
“F-RE CERNUE
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARH#TIT ARMTT
Provision for PRC Enterprise Income Tax IRATJE e A AN A ZE TS Bl s 111 32
PRC Enterprise Income Tax paid TN 2 e AR LA A ZE RT3 ™) ®)
104 24
Balance of PRC enterprise Income Tax DARIAT B F e AR AN A SE BT A3 Bt i 24 -
relating to prior year
128 24

(b) Deferred tax assets not recognised

In accordance with the accounting policy set out in note
2(q), the Group has not recognised deferred tax assets in
respect of cumulative tax losses of RMB20,887,000
(2014: RMB19,481,000) as it is not assured that future
taxable profits against which the losses can be utilised
will be available in the relevant tax jurisdiction and
entity. The tax losses do not expire under current tax
legislation. The tax losses will be expire within five

years from the end of the respective reporting period.

(b) AR TR HE R T ¥ s

TRARF T2 () il S =t , A AR B I A A1 B
TSI s 4B A HLA T I 2 BN RS 20,887,000 T (2
—VY4E: A EH19,481,00000) LB ERIEH G A, JR A
FE A B BT 4 i o S T R K AT BB A R 2
JRERR e F) AR S 1T 3 F 2 75 B e 48 R ELAth 5 g 2
Lo ARHERRBS RS TERAG AT 4 B B SR E AR 2 AR
AR 22 AR
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23. SHARE CAPITAL 23, A&
(a)Issued share capital (BEITIA
2015 2015 2014 2014
TR HE S SR -RE ZEE PR
Number of Nllmhf?r of RMB’ 000
shares’ 000 RMB’ 000 shares’ 000
B 000 AR#BEToT  REC 000 ARMETIT
Ordinary shares, issued CET A
and fully paid: I
At 1 January w—H—H 915,272 81,699 366,109 38,681
Rights issue (b) BATIRCERR A - - 549,163 43,018
At 31 December »t—HA=1+—H 915,272 81,699 915,272 81,699

(b) Rights issue

(b) BEAT IR RE I

On 28 November 2014, the Company made a rights

issue in the proportion of three rights shares for every

two existing shares at HK$0.10 per rights share

24. RESERVES

24. 8%

fE =R A T NH, AR E L0175
s O R RS A B A T B A B M G 38 = R PIC S At
7 B FEBAEA T RO AL o

(a)Nature and purpose of reserves

® Statutory reserve and statutory enterprise expansion fund

Pursuant to the PRC regulations and the Company’s
Articles of Association and board resolutions of the
Company, the Company is required to transfer 10%
of its net profit, as determined under the PRC
accounting regulations, to a statutory reserve until
the fund aggregates 50%
registered capital. The transfers to this reserve must
be made before distribution of dividends to
shareholders.

of the Company’s

The statutory reserve shall only be
used to make good previous year losses, to expand
the Company production operations or to increase
the capital of the Company. Upon approval by a
resolution at a shareholder’s general meeting, the
Company may transform its statutory reserve into
share capital and issue bonus shares to existing
shareholders their
shareholdings or to increase the nominal value of
each share currently held by them, provided that the
balance of the reserve fund after such issue is not

in proportion to original

less than 25% of the registered capital. Moreover,
the subsidiaries of the Company established in the
PRC are required to transfer 5% or 10% of their
profit after taxation, as determined under the PRC
accounting regulations, to the enterprise expansion
fund.

(a) i MR 2

) BEAR R ERFE R RS

TR B IR AN I AR AR, AN FZH
P R et B RS T Y 10 % B AL E
BisE, B RAGA B AO SRR S TR A A w Y s A
BEARIY509% 2 1k o BTN LI R 4 20 A 23
TRIEE T IR R o F5E ARG ] AT
WAL ETR . BOOR A R A EEACE . B
AR TR BEA . BB GHHE, AN TR
EEAREHERMA, MBI IR A H
TR TR SRR, BN S R SR I
AW BB HME, MR ZEA TR, ke AR
BRI AB25%. BN, A
E e N A B e YAl O A
HERBURAIN Z 5008100018 NI E A S R R &
o SR HRAEAT B r B 1) SR TR R 2
TR JELAE 0 E o
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(ii) Special reserve

The special reserve represents the differences
between the nominal value of the shares of VP (BVI)
(a holding company of the other members of the
Group prior to the Group Reorganisation) and the
nominal value of the Company’s shares issued
pursuant to the Group Reorganisation.

(iii) Capital reserve

The capital reserve represents the additional
contributions made by the shareholders of the
Company and the additional contributions made by
the minority shareholder of the subsidiary of the
Company prior to the listing of the Company’s
shares on The Growth Enterprise Market of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

(iv) Contributed surplus

The contributed surplus represents the difference
between the net assets of the subsidiaries and the
nominal amount of the Company’s shares issued in
exchange thereof pursuant to the Group Reorganisation.

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to
its shareholders comprise the capital reserve and
contributed surplus. In accordance with the Company’s
Articles of Association, dividends shall be payable
out of profits or other reserves, including the share
premium account, of the Company. Under the
Companies Law (2002 Revision) of the Cayman
Islands, the Company must be able to pay its debts as
they fall due in the ordinary course of business
immediately following the distribution of ay dividends.
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(ii) Ryl fitte

R B T VP (BVI) (AR M E AL AT AR M H
fl i R FZ B A w]) ety B M A2 RIR
AR A SR EAH IR AT 2 J A7 ThOEL P 4 T 2 22

(i) B Al

YA B R A ) B TR A A SR A 2
e ETTET PR Z BHAME R, LA A W
F BB N T R ONE -

(iv) Bk E R

A ] 2 AN R R R R 2 W 2 E A
A TR R AR I E A B AT LI s e B T
(B 2 2

Ao w] LA YR T B 2 A e B A B vk £
ARG A R R A . R A AT
AR, A2 BB A2 Wl A s Al
R (A R R AR« BLAN, RIEBH S
S Z AL (CER BRI, AN RIHAE
RHIREE BB 2 A%, REA SO H WS 2
ZIER.
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25. OPERATING LEASE

At the end of the reporting period, the total future minimum
lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases are
payable as follows:

B ME
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

25. FEfTEK

PR -TET A= H, R KB
EEH TﬁWTTZEiTEE?FH/Eﬁ*/'/»U GV

2015 2014
“E-RE BRI
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARBETIT  ARWTT

Within one year —4EN

17 81

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the
Group in respect of machinery, and land and buildings. The
leases typically run for an initial period of one year, with an
option to renew the lease when all terms are renegotiated.
Lease payments are usually increased every year to reflect
market rentals. None of the leases includes any contingent
rentals.

26 RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEME

Pursuant to the relevant labour rules and regulations in the
PRC, the Group subsidiaries in the PRC participate in defined
contribution retirement schemes (the “Schemes”) organised
by the relevant local authorities whereby the PRC subsidiaries
are required to make contributions to the Schemes at rates
which range from 0.3% to 20% (2014: 0.3% to 20%) of the
eligible employees’ salaries during the year. The relevant
local government authorities are responsible for the entire
pension obligations payable to retired employees.

27 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS

The Company has a share option scheme which was adopted
on 20 June 2003 whereby the directors of the Company are
authorized, at their discretion, to invite employees of the
Group, including directors of any company in the Group, to
take up options at predetermined considerations to subscribe
for shares of the Company.
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TRIE PR AHBAZS CRLRI R, ARG B v B B
N E 2 BHBA M T R S 0 FUE ORI E R (TR
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(a)The terms and conditions of the grants given are as follows:
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(a) TR G F 2 R JE i SAA T (AR < R R R

2015: — T4
At Granted Exercised Lapsed At 31
Exercise January during during the during t December
Grant date price Note 2015 2015 year he year 2015
P2 F i BrE TR AR AT AT R
F—H—H B fTHRE ey +=HA=+—H
2 March 2005 HK$0.52 )
2/3/2005 5241 (it 706,400 ) ) 706,400 )
14 December 2005 HK$0.45
14/12/2005 Ti451l (i) 72,000 - - 72,000 -
18 /23%182 2006 %Kﬂigsa (iv) 1,018,800 - - 90,000 928,800
ig /15\//[%027007 %Kﬂ?z;? T 2,058,100 - - 108,000 1,950,100
;25’;8029009 %Kﬂigg‘ Z?m (vi) 5,392,800 - - 1,062,000 4,330,800
28 /J6‘/‘;g 125015 %Kﬂigg‘ fm (vii) - 20,670,000 - - 20,670,000
9,248,100 20,670,000 - 2,038,400 27,879,700
2014: :%‘\g | ﬁgz
Atl Granted Lapsed At 31
Exercise January during during t December
Grant date price Note 2014 2014 he year 2014
2 5 Tl B E o Fz— TAARAT TAAAT AT A AR
F—H—H B s +=-HA=+—H
20 June 2003 HK$0.52 .
20/3/2003 324l @ 9,720,000 ) 9,720,000 i
; /1;//[;5%}; 2003 Z%;g;f“ (i) 850,400 - 144,000 706,400
14 December 2005 HKS$0.36
14/12/2005 Wiasl (i) 72,000 : ; 72,000
ig /gg‘f)‘éz 2006 %%2‘665“5 (iv) 1,254,600 - 235,800 1,018,800
ig /15\//[%027007 Z(%;g; g’fm ) 2,643,300 - 585,200 2,058,100
; 25’;01029009 E(%;g: 2 i (vi) 6,308,800 - 916,000 5,392,800
20,849,100 - 11,601,000 9,248,100
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Notes:

(i) These options are exercisable in three trenches with the
maximum percentages of options exercisable within the
periods commencing from 1 January 2004 to 31
December 2004, from 1 January 2005 to 31 December
2005 and after 1 January 2006 being 30%, 60% and
100%, respectively. The options were valid and effective
until 19 June 2013.

(ii)These options are exercisable within the period
commencing from 2 March 2005 to 1 March 2015. The
options were valid and effective until 1 March 2015.

(iii) These options are exercisable within the period
commencing from 14 December 2005 to 13 December
2015. The options were valid and effective until 13
December 2015.

(iv) These options are exercisable within the period
commencing from 10 August 2006 to 9 August 2016.
The options are valid and effective until 9 August 2016.

(V) These options are exercisable within the period
commencing from 10 May 2007 to 9 May 2017. The
options are valid and effective until 9 May 2017.

(vi)These options are exercisable within the period
commencing from 7 April 2009 to 6 April 2019. The
options are valid and effective until 6 April 2019.

(vii) These options are exercisable in three trench with the
maximum percentage of options exercisable with the
periods commencing from 30 June 2016 to 29 June 2017,
30 June 2017 to 29 June 2018 and on 30 June 2018 being
40%, 70% and 100%, respectively.
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(b)The number and weighted average exercise prices of
share options are as follows:
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(b) A A e F A IR F 247 G A I T

2015 2014
B T —F
Weighted Number Weighted Number
average exercise of options average exercise of options
price HK$ (“000) price HK$ (‘000)
TIRET-24 MR B H IRET-24 SRR B H
P ( ‘000 /%) Frif s ( ‘000 /&)
Outstanding at the beginning of the year 0.473 9,248,100 0.400 20,849,100
e H—H E ATl
Lapsed during the year 0.472 (2,038,400) 0.348 (11,601,000)
TR P8
Granted during the year 0.450 20,670,000 - -
AL R
Outstanding at the end of the year 0.457 27,879,700 0.473 9,248,100
et A= B AL
Exercisable at the end of the year 0.477 7,209,700 0.473 9,248,100

et A = HA AT

The options outstanding at 31 December 2015 had a weighted
average remaining contractual life of 4.35 years (2014: 3.22
years).

(c)Fair value of share options and assumptions

The fair value of services received in return for share options
granted is measured by reference to the fair value of share
options granted. The estimate of the fair value of the share
options granted is measured based on a binomial lattice model.
The contractual life of the share option is used as an input and
expectations of early exercise are incorporated into the binomial
lattice model.

2015

Fair value at measurement date HK$0.209 - HK$0.2881

Share price HK$0.43
Exercise price HK$0.45
Expected volatility (expressed as weighted average 89.29%
volatility used in the modeling under binomial lattice

model)

Option life (expressed as weighted average life used 10 years

in the modeling under binomial lattice model)
Expected dividends 0%
Risk-free interest rate (based on Exchange Fund Notes) 1.788%

TR EIEREZ IIRE Y TR G A T A4 3507 (. F
— P04 3.224F)

(o) IR 2 o Pl M ALk

AR IR BB AR 2 IR 2 AR E, T92F K
e A iR . ORI EREZ MR A R EEL
T AR e BRE . SR I Ei e — 1]
MAZ U AR FATH 2 I E Rt A U R
Mo

TE—HAE
AFEE A A fE 0.9l - HEFE 288111l
A8 43l
1T {EAE HEEas (]
TEHH IR 89.29%
TR B AU 10 years
TR S 0%
488 J gz 1) 2% 1.788%
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28

The expected volatility is based on the historic volatility
(calculated based on the weighted average remaining life of
the share options), adjusted for any expected changes to
historical dividends. Changes in the subjective input assumption
could materially affect the fair value estimates.

Share options were granted under service conditions which
have not been taken into account in the grant date fair value
measurement of the services received. There were no market
conditions associated with the share option grants.

MATERIAL RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS
(a) Key management personnel remuneration
Remuneration for key management personnel of the Group,

wholly related to amounts paid to the Company’s directors
as disclosed in note 8, is as follows:

B HTHE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

TEUYTIE W 14 JBE S SRR, AR AR TR B R B
ARACPME ZALATHUAE T LAgi i . I B R
SRS RE o BT BR B B AR B ] A A
HZ fhwt A AR

S P R AR R R R U T R o DU TR PR AR R i
B Z ARE (AR B REAEEEZ 5.
52 4 S ST SRS A T SR A o

CEREEANLS

() WMEEBRANRZME

A5 10 o RN B I < R S ) AR A W R S
NI S e,

2015 2014

e ST M

RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

AR#ETI G AR¥TIC
Short term employee benefits KA B AR 1,463 221
Contributions to defined contribution retirement plan B IRAE ] 85 122
Share based payments AR EARF] 600 -
2,148 343

Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see note

6(b)).

HWETRA TETHA )

(FBfEs (b)) o

(b) Financing arrangements (b) B2 HE
2015 2014
T P
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARFETIT ARBTIT
Other payables due to related companies: HoAth AT
R S TEH A IR A ] JEAT i R B T IE BEE A TR AT 383 383
JEnt s R B AR BT A BR A W] JEAHE R 28 A B4 A M B A IR A F] 873 873
JentE e AR ZER B IR A JEA AL 2 A M R LR A IR A ] 598 598
5 1R A A R S S B A R A ] JEEAS ¥ 1 R A A BRI TS e AT R A 7 1,133 1,133
2,987 2,987

The outstanding balances with these related companies which are

JREAST B i 2 ) Jo AR S B N 5 [ PR 2 ik

included in “Other payables and accruals” (note 18) are unsecured,

non-interest bearing and have no fixed repayment terms .
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(c) Receipts in advance (c) TR
2015 2014

ZEH ZENF

RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

AREETI T ARFETIC

HURsEIZE (W ) AFRAA] wErrEE ) AIRATE] 3,830 -
T fk B IS 4E 2T TR A 7] LAk S G S 3L A IR A ] 2,629 -
6,459 -

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group signed
several pharmaceutical research and promotional contracts with
the above related parties and received deposit amounting to
RMB6,459,000 (2014: Nil). The revenue on the above contracts
was determined based on sales results of specific products in
2016. The respective services have been started but the amount
of revenue cannot be accurately projected up to the dated of this
report, and accordingly, no revenue is recognised for the year
ended 31 December 2015 in respect of these contracts.

The related companies are under the common control of Mr. Guo
Xia, William, a director of the Company.

(d)Other related parties transactions
(1)The Group had the following significant business transactions

with a related company during the year ended 31 December
2015:

HME-Z—HF+ A =+—HILFE, REHE LR
Wit 77 %% 28 T 22 (R SE W I 5% R0 4 B A TR 10 0 381 5 < N R R
6,459,0007C (—FE—P4F: &) . FIRERRAZEIN —F
—NAE R T B S K R . BESAAR A I EL AR B UG
&1@%%%%@ Rk 2 A 1, AR R S50
REYEREHL (ST RIS 2 & R T A B35 A
E&E F—HF+ T = H IR E TR

ARAFHA— (L H —Willilam xia guodotE 2y FIRBE A =]
HREGdive

(d) HoAt B £ 52 5

() A SE R AL B FRBRE A 52 A 0T

2015 2014
TR R CEJUE
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR#ETIT ARMTT
Name of related party Nature of transactions
YN R LoHTEE
VB 4 v 2 (FEM") HIRAH] Testing services Notes
Ee s gE (EM) AIRAT Ul {OpES 849 -
Note:
The management of the Group is of the opinion that revenue i 5 2 7 B 1) 1) B 8\ 58 B 1o LAy B e JEE

from the services to the related company were made on normal
commercial terms negotiated between the parties.

(i1)The unsecured bank loan to the Group of RMB1,500,000
(2014:RMB2,000,000)was guaranteed by a director of the
company, Ms Maria Xue Mei Song, to the extent of RMB 1,500,000
(2014:RMB2,000,000).
disclosed in note 21.

The details of the guarantee are

mo

(i) A B [ A A A T8 1) SBE R ERA T ) LAAR A w) o —1ir
HH ORI LM AR . SRR A N R
1,500,0007C ( —F—PY4E: A RH2,000,0007C) -
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29 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES IN RESPECT OF LEGAL CLAIM

As of 31 December 2015, certain subsidiaries of the Group are
defendants in proceedings relating to its customers. Based on
respective legal advice and court judgements, management is of
the opinion that the outcome of such proceedings will not beyond
the existing accruals made for such litigation claims as disclosed
in note 18(b). Accordingly, there will have no significant impact
to the financial status of the Group.

30 CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, so
that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders. The Group’s overall strategy

remains unchanged from prior years.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital
structure to ensure it is effective and optimises shareholder
returns, taking into consideration the future capital requirements
of the Group prevailing and projected capital expenditure and
projected investment opportunities.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
consider the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, the return
of capital to shareholders, the issue of new shares or selling
assets to reduce debt.

The Group assesses the total equity/deficiency presented on the
face of the consolidated statement of financial position for capital
management purposes.

31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

AND FAIR

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risks arise
in the normal course of the Group’s business.

The Group is also exposed to equity price risk arising from its
own listed share price.

The Group’s exposure to these risks and the financial risk
management policies and practices used to manage these risks
are described below.

(a) Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade and other
receivables and cash at bank. Management has a credit policy in
place and the exposure to these credit risks are monitored on an
ongoing basis.

88 CHINA HEALTH GROUP INC.

BB T ME
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

29. IR M BUR A R

TSR, A P ) 25 B B 2 ] DR S R R
o AR B 2 M B A A B IR, R S
YA R, R K S S T s S (S o PR T 18
(b) FUH BN AR, TR B AR S I ) S 55K 0L
BAERYE.

30. BEAEH
I 5 R A R A IR 2 T R L i A A [ RER A A

REST, oL REARR AN JB SRR A ] 0 A 2y LAt ) 2 A B A
TARMERIR . AGREEE B AR BRI A A A

AR AR N2 5 1S AR SRR A b SO B, AR R
AR N e AR Rl . AEE B e A M L AR
75 AR B AT R L MR AR B ¥ M A i

Ay PR R R AN A, AR T LA R A AR TSR 1Y JBE AR
, TSGR IENEAS, BT R sl ) 5 4 i A B AR

AR A T2 ML A 5 T IR 2 (O R 2 AR

3. MBEREREREMTEZ ARE

AL BEEHRE P A EER. RBEE. FIRLE
L o

B T TS TR LR T 455 L 9 B i 2 A BB o
SR T 2 A o R i R A S R PR P < D 5 e B A BB
SRELEGIHOE LT o

(a) A

A B 2 AR R e B R R A . A
JERAEEBOR, WA B (5 S R B Rr il 52 2 B A%




B RETHE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

In respect of trade and other receivables, the Group has policies
in place to ensure credit is granted to customers with appropriate
credit histories and good reputations through evaluations on
customer past histories of making payments when due and
current ability to pay, and take into account information specific
to the customers as well as pertaining to the economic environment
in which the they operate. Trade receivables are due within 30
days (2014: 30 days) from the date of billing. Normally, the
Group does not obtain collateral from customers.

The Group’s concentration of credit risk on trade receivables by
geographical locations is mainly in the PRC which accounted for
97.7% (2014: 100%) of the total trade receivables balance at 31
December 2015. The group also has concentration of credit risk
on its three largest customers (2014: only customer) which
represent 97.7% (2014: 100%) of the total trade receivables
balance and of which the largest customer represent 72.9%
(2014: 100%) of the total trade receivables balance. For both
years, the three largest customers (2014: only customer), which
are/is engaged in medical related business in the P.R.C., have
good repayment history and credit quality with reference to the
track records of these customers under internal assessment by the
Group.

The credit risk on cash at bank is limited because the
counterparties are authorised financial institutions with sound
credit ratings.

The maximum exposure to credit risk, without taking account of
any collateral held, is represented by the carrying amount of each
financial asset in the statement of financial position after
deducting any impairment allowances.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group’s exposure
to credit risk arising from trade and other receivables are set out
in notes 15 and 16.

(b)Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are responsible for
their own cash management, including the short term investment
of cash surpluses and the raising of loans to cover expected cash
demands, subject to approval by the parent company’s board
when the borrowings exceed certain predetermained levels of
authority. The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity
requirements and compliance with lending covenants, to ensure
that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash and readily realisable
marketable securities and adequate committed lines of funding
from major financial institutions to meet its liquidity requirements
in the short and longer term.
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The following tables detail the remaining contractual maturities
at the end of the reporting period of the Group’s non-derivative
financial liabilities and derivative financial liabilities, which are
based on contractual undiscounted cash flows (including interest

payments computed using contractual rates or, if floating, based

on rates current at the end of the reporting period) and the earliest

date the Group and the Company are required to pay:
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TNEREFIAREE NG H 2 SRR AT SRR, 1
JIRB A AT BB R (RIFG GRS, G
SR H AT 2 FIRFHE 2 FIE) AR AR BZA R A
B fi - H IR -

2015
S

Within 1 year or More than 1 year

Total contractual

on demand but less than 2 years ~ undiscounted cash flow  Carrying amount
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR R DR —AEBEMAE N BRIABIBI SRR IRA(HE
B 000 A JHE” 000 AR 000 NEHE 000
Non-derivative financial liabilities:
HABREAT O
Payables and accrued charges
5 22,550 - 22,550 22,550
JEEFE A
Convertible notes
e 6,520 - 6,520 5,77
AT ’ ’ 77
Bank borrowings
Py 1,570 - 1,570 1,500
FUTEK
30,640 - 30,640 29,829
2015
“F N4
Within 1 year or More than 1 year Total contractual
on demand but less than 2 years ~ undiscounted cash flow  Carrying amount
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR L ESR —AEREMEN BRI BBl S AR R {E
AR 000 AR 000 AR 000 AEHE” 000
Derivative financial liabilities
AT e iR
Derivative financial liabilities 4,447 i 4,447 4,447

embedded in convertible notes

AR - TR £
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2014
SEmE

Within 1 year or More than 1 year

Total contractual

on demand but less than 2 years ~ undiscounted cash flow  Carrying amount
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARG ESR AEBREMAEN BRARTTHB SR AR RE
AR 000 ABHE” 000 AR 000 AR 000
Non-derivative financial liabilities:
HAEAT R
Payables and accrued charges
% 19,284 - 19,284 19,284
[t
Convertible notes
; " - 5,779 5,779 4,844
AR
Bank borrowings
PP 2,118 - 2,118 2,000
HUTEK
21,402 5,779 27,181 26,128
2014
R

Within 1 year or More than 1 year

Total contractual

on demand but less than 2 years ~ undiscounted cash flow  Carrying amount
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR ER —FEEW AN HRIAT B Em AT IREHE
AR o000 AR o000 AR o000 AR o000
Derivative financial liabilities
ARl =N
Derivative financial liabilities
embedded in convertible notes B 1,623 1,623 1,623
AR - A Al E
(c)Interest rate risk ()P J it

The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from bank deposits
and bank borrowings. The bank deposits and borrowings bear
interest at variable rates expose the Group to cash flow interest

rate risk and fair value interest rate risk, respectively. The
Group’s interest rate profile is monitored by management.

AL 2 R R T B B SR TR B B AR
AT AR R MR R B SR (R, ALEE
TS 1|3 B 30 M i A 0 7 R B

T EEREESFRAFON




2015F &

ANNUAL REPORT
BE_F-—AE+-A=+—HILEE
For the year ended 31 December 2015

Sensitivity analysis

It is estimated that a general increase/decrease of 100 basis points
in the interest rates of variable rate borrowings and bank savings
prevailing at the reporting date, with all other variables held
constant, would decrease/increase the Group’s loss after tax and
decrease/increase accumulated losses by approximately RMB53,000
for the year ended 31 December 2015 (2014: increase/decrease
the Group’s profit after tax and decrease/ increase accumulated
losses by approximately RMB19,000).

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined assuming
that changes in interest rates occurred at the end of the reporting
period and had been applied to the exposure to interest rate risk
for financial instruments in existence at that date. The 100 basis
point increase or decrease represents management’s assessment
of a reasonably possible change in interest rates over the period
until the next annual end of reporting period. The analysis is
performed on the same basis for 2014.

(d) Equity price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk arising from changes in
the Company’s own share price to the extent that the Company’s
own equity instruments underlie the fair values of derivatives or
other financial liabilities of the Group. As at the end of the reporting
period, the Group is exposed to this risk through the convertible
notes issued by the Company as disclosed in note 20.

At 31 December 2015, it is estimated that an increase/decrease of
10% (2014: 10%) in the relevant stock market index (for listed
investments), the price/earnings ratios of comparable listed
companies (for unquoted investments) or the Company’s own
share price (for the derivative component of convertible notes) as
applicable, with all other variables held constant, would have
increased/decreased the Group’s loss after tax (and accumulated
loss) and other components of consolidated equity by RMB690,000
(2014: decrease/increase the Group’s profit after tax and
increase/decrease the accumulated loss by RMB82,000).

The sensitivity analysis indicates the instantaneous change in the
Group’s fair value reserve that would arise assuming that the
changes in the respective quoted share prices occurred at the end
of the reporting period and had been applied to re-measure those
financial instruments held by the Group which expose the Group
to equity price risk at the end of the reporting period. It is also
assumed that the fair values of the Group’s equity investments
would change in accordance with the historical correlation with
the relevant share price that none of the Group’s available-for-sale
financial assets would be considered impaired as a result of the
short term fluctuations in the relevant share price, and that all
other variables remain constant.
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SR E AT

EERIES S T N 7 S =R (B <5 [ SN W A B =
RZ R AR E DL, ARG W BRFL & R 18 M BT s 1%
R/ b 7 B N B 53,0000 (& —VU4E: BRMERS
IR A Rt R A ] 19,0007T) o

VA B B0 4 A7 7 R B < L L A i 24 A ) 5 e
A o AT REF AL 3 LT Bk B 35 25 L S R
—AEFPRBEE AR, e T PE = = HIEE
BEZ 3 A 545 SRR R R P A T

(d) SBEAE LB

A I T 2 S R B, BT D A B SR B O B )
51 A A 2 W RE D A A AR TR s A < R R Y
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(e)Currency risk

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily through bank
accounts that are denominated in a foreign currency, i.c. a
currency other than the functional currency of the operations to
which the transactions relate. The currencies giving rise to this
risk are primarily Hong Kong Dollars (“HKD”) and United
States Dollars (“USD”). The Group currently does not hedge its
foreign exchange exposures.

Exposure to currency risks

The following table details the Group’s exposure at the end of the
reporting period to currency risks arising from recognised assets
or liabilities denominated in a currency other than the functional
currency of the operations to which they relate.
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(e) B B

AR T B R T R A BB AR, AR
SN (BN5E o Fr iy Se s 2 ThRE B LIObZ /W) wiHE. 7
AR B EESEIT (T ) MSEIT (T3
T ) o AN B R B T

2 BRI

E

NERREA S R el H AR LA B R 2 T RE R 2 &
W B e i e A 2 B KB

2015 2014
TR TR

HKD’000 USD’000 HKD’000 USD’000

#ITT 000 FIT°000 HEIT 000 JF£I6°000
Cash at bank and on hand 814 29 2,214 167
i AR TAEAR

Sensitivity analysis RN T
AN IR A R A A [ T KR B 2

The following table indicates the approximate changes in the
Group’s loss after tax and accumulated loss in response to
reasonably possible changes in the foreign exchange rates to
which the Group has significant exposures at the end of the
reporting period. Other components of equity are not affected by
changes in the foreign exchange rates.

“ﬁT%ﬁﬁﬁ%Uﬁﬁ%@ﬂ&%
AR i LA o g A A A A

A A 2 B2 E) (

2015 2014
e e TG — P4
Effect on Effect on
Change in loss after tax and Change in Effect on accumulated
foreign exchange accumulated loss foreign exchange profit after tax loss
rates RMB’000 rates RMB’ 000 RMB’000
i R A B RN TH i 2 55 ) HERRS R IH
K RFHER e Tl 2 s 2R
AR 000 ARHE000 A RHE 000
HKD
HETE 5% (34) 5% 87 (87)
USD
E0 5% ) 5% 51 (51)

hEEESEBEAERLSAI3
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Results of the analysis as presented in the above table represent
an aggregation of the instantaneous effects on the profit after
taxation and retained earnings of each entity of the Group
measured in the respective functional currencies, translated into
USD at the exchange rates ruling at the financial year end date
for presentation purposes.

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the change in foreign
exchange rates had been applied to re-measure those financial
instruments held by the Group which expose the Group to
foreign currency risks at the financial year end date, including
intercompany payables and receivables within the Group, which
are denominated in a currency other than the functional currencies
of the lender or the borrower. The analysis excludes differences
that would result from the translation of the financial statements
of foreign operations into the Group’s presentation currency.

(f) Fair value measurement

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the Group’s
financial instrument measured at the end of the reporting period
on a recurring basis, categorised into the three-level fair value
hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement. The
level into which a fair value measurement is classified is
determined with reference to the observability and significance
of the input used in the valuation technique as follows:

Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using only Level 1 input
i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets
or liabilities at the measurement date.

Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using Level 2 input i.e.
observable inputs which fail to meet Level 1, and not using
significant unobservable input. Unobservable input are those for
which market data are not available.

Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using significant
unobservable inpu.

The following table presents the Group’s assets and liabilities
that are measured at fair value at 31 December 2015 and 2014.
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bR R AP R A A B LU 1 T A BT
P R TR, He AT 2 MR T LR

v U IS 2

BRI 93 T (B N 36 58 8 Y S e A R 7 e
FIRPA 2 4 A58 1 T MR S B A B i TR, B dm R
S B A T DA RO B AN 2 T RE LR LASh 2 B s HE
Z IR ENTH o I3 AN CL A TR 4 5 o LA Sl s i
NE 2 SRR A SR 2 B BT A R ZE R

(f) ARfEFHE
2 FAER B

TEFEFHL A AR R M s T H R et H A & I %
WA HER S 1358, A B, FE = EE S0
Pes (R (FOR R E A B A BB A G
B

#

U AR E A AR S B BT i R

HE) o

ik

gl

S AR BRT AU — RSN, R A R HoAt
N, ATEREEH (RDBIAERs) s (RIUR A )
itk

S =AY B R N AR T B 2 T DR
(AR -

FRIRAE R R IET A = A TR
A = HUA B ER R G E LA

2015 S
Level 3 B8
RMB’ 000 AL 000
Derivative financial instruments ol =N
Derivative component embedded in convertible notes 4,447 ATHRIR R - ATk i 6 4,447
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2014 e SIS
Level 3 B4
RMB’ 000 AR 000
Derivative financial instruments friA= A e fi
Derivative component embedded in convertible notes 1,623 AR AR - AT AR AU 1,623

Estimation of fair values

Derivative component embedded in convertible notes The
fair value of the derivative component embedded in
convertible notes is valued by the directors with reference to
report issued by RHL Appraised Ltd
(2014:Greater China Appraised Ltd) and is determined using
the binomial lattice model and the significant unobservable

a valuation

input used in the fair value measurement is expected
volatility. ~ The fair value measurement is positively
correlated to the expected volatility. As at 31 December
2015, it is estimated that with all other variables held
constant, an increase/decrease in the expected volatility by

5% would not affect the Group’s profit by (2014: RMB Nil).

The movements during the period in the balance of these
Level 3 fair value measurements are as follows:

A SERTRHL

AR S - AT A TR A 2 FfE o AR AR KR
FTRFERAM A BRA ] (& U4 BEEEHEA R A F)
HORFAt i i 0 DA R R . BUE i
B —THERHAZ 8. A R ERw BT
A EAEBR R, P H , fEHAIAZ BN

T,  TEINE LFF R 590/~ S 8 BEACHE [ 1 (5
)R

B LTRRME R - FE - =1T—H
1A BT

2015 2014
SEEAE R
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARBFIT  ARBTFI
Derivative component embedded in AT - Tk A AR
convertible notes
At 1 January A—H—H 1,623 -
Convertible notes issued AAEBEIT AT RIS - 1318
Changes in fair value recognised in ARAEN FAE )
profit or loss during the year 2,731 307
Exchange realignment [ ZEH 93 )
At 31 December At H=+—H 4,447 1,623

The fair values of the convertible notes are estimated as being the
present values of future cash flows, discounted at interest rates
based on the government yield curve as at the end of the
reporting period plus an adequate constant credit spread, adjusted

for the Group’s own credit risk.

RSB AR S 1 2 OB R 1 R A B it 1 B AE A A T
s RIS A B AR R L TA AR A5 R BURF (25 W 26 A0 0
W MR, TR AL (5 b

TEEEREBEERSAIS
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32. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

RIBBRME

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

32. A EIBTH K BR IR

COMPANY
2015 2014
Tx N - PUE
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AREETIC ARBETIC
NON-CURRENT ASSETS AemE
INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES TR B S w2 W _ _
CURRENT ASSETS it )
PREPAYMENT AND OTHER RECEIVABLES TEAF IR HoAth SR 13.412 13,286
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS BENBeHHER 841 2,739
14,253 16,025
CURRENT LIABILITIES mEAE
OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS oAb A S e T 8.449 8.049
AMOUNTS DUE TO SUBSIDIARIES JREAST PR JB 2 W H 29,699 29,699
CONVERTIBLE NOTES RS 5779 _
DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL LIABILITIES Tk R R 4.447 _
48,374 37.748
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES HREI A E (34,121) (21,723)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES A el 4 £ (34,121) (21,723)
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES JemEa s
CONVERTIBLE NOTES R RAES _ 4,844
DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL LIABILITIES eifa s Y= _ 1.623
- 6,467
NET LIABILITIES RN (34,121) (28,190)
CAPITAL AND RESERVES B it
SHARE CAPITAL B 81,699 81,699
RESERVES b fts (115,820) (109,889)
DEFICIENCY IN ASSETS T 2 AR (34.121) (28,190)

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on March 18, 2016
I A VI WANEE & & ) - B 01 20

William Xia GUO
William Xia Guo

Director
HH
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Dr. Maria Xue Mei SONG
REMHE L
Director
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33 ULTIMATE CONTROLLING PARTIES

As at 31 December 2015, the directors consider the ultimate

controlling shareholder of the Company to be Mr. William Xia Guo.

34 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,NEW STANDARDS
AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET
EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA
has issued a number of amendments and new standards which are
not yet effective for the year ended 31 December 2015 and which
have not been adopted in these financial statements. These
include the following which may be relevant to the Group:

Effective for accounting periods beginning on or after

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle 1 January 2016

Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38,
Clarification of acceptable methods of depreciation

1 January 2016

and amortisation

Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKAS
28, Investment Entities: Applying the Consolidation

1 January 2016

Exception

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28, Sale or
Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its

1 January 2016

Associate or Joint Venture

Amendments to HKFRS 11, Accounting for
Acquisitions of Interest in Joint Operations

1 January 2016

Amendments to HKAS 1, Disclosure Initiative 1 January 2016

HKAS 16
Agriculture: Bearer Plants

Amendments  to and HKAS 1 January 2016

Amendments to HKAS 27, Equity Method in
Separate Financial Statements

1 January 2016

HKFRS 14, Regulatory Deferral Accounts 1 January 2016

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers 1 January 2017

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments 1 January 2018

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the
impact of these amendments is expected to be in the period of
initial application. So far it has concluded that such adoption is
unlikely to have a significant impact on the consolidated
financial statements.
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33. BRI

R, RoF T H=1—H, NMEEARKE
R R A William xia guof'[;i o

34, BARMEMAREZ - F—HE+"A=Z+—HIEEE
HERZAERT FRIEA KRR R

HEAMBHREAEZH, FHFEMHAGCHEMEZE
FoRAET A= HIRSEE MR AER, AN
AR PR 2 WORERT Ko HEAN, W P eLAE R B R REBLA
SERIHB B RT e

T H e 2 AR B UG 2 R Ak

TR-TEETZ-ER TS R X F—H—H
Iz 4F e

CEEEHERD 16 PR EBERHERD RN —H
38 BE TV MM PRI B ) 28
il

R S0 SR MR %N H—H
HUER H28 E THEE REBE AR 21
il

MBS 10 BER FBMHEE
Hy M08 BE (IR RS A A
fie o Lilioh =i R NI T |

ZE N HH

G ELD st ORaE RN %N H—H
REziZ Ot ) 21857

F e RS RT TR srE —E—NFE—H—H
CEHEGEIEND 16 PEK CEWGFHEAD T NE— —H
Far9F TR EAREY ) ZBET
GEWEEREND H27 59 VB MBEEZE T - H—0
ik ZAEET
CEHBIHIRAERD 1458 [EVEIRIEIRE TN —H—H
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RESULTS S0

Year ended 31 December
HETH S —HIEEE
2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
SFE DR TF RS —emeE DB —HE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARTFETIE ARETT ARBETIC  ARETTE ARWTT

Turnover b= 18,099 28,688 14,931 5,956 20,497
(Loss)/profit before tax FREIET (E51R) /af (149,772) 3,231 (30,966) 44,117 (3,376)
Income tax Al (4,024) (113) (53) (32) (111)
(Loss)/profit after tax before Bt (R AT AR HIRE 25 (153,796) 3,118 (31,019) 44,085 (3,487
non-controlling interests H ) AR

Non-controlling interests el 1,361 89 ) 32 (134)
(Loss)/profit for the year FBRAR IR SR B AN (152,435) 3,207 (31,028) 44,117 (3,353)
after non-controlling interests B (fHR) /R

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BERAK

As at 31 December
A A= H kAR
2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
CEeeE SEReAE TR ZBENE ZB—AHE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARKTIE  ARWTT ARSTIT ARETT AR¥ETIT

Total assets less current SE A (96,752) (2,312) (124,625) (31,055)  (39,668)
liabilities

Non current liabilities E[SrEIE=N - (91,875) - (6,476) -
(Corporate bonds payable) JEATA RIS

Non-controlling interests ez il e 316 (157) (166) (134) -

Deficit of shareholders’ funds JRESR I 72 (96,436) (94,344) (124,791) (37,656) (39,668)
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